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Corporate Information
NI
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Executive Directors
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Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBS, J.P.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
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Bermuda

Tricor Tengis Limited
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Hong Kong

Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

01170
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Closure of Register of Members

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting

17 August 2018 to 22 August 2018

Entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends

4 September 2018 to 6 September 2018
Annual General Meeting

22 August 2018

Proposed Payment Date of Final and Special Dividends

On or about 27 September 2018
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Financial Highlights
IR

2018 2017 Change
—g-NE T % 28
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
Revenue W& 1,164,873 1,830,267 -36.4%
Gross profit EF 182,621 329,836 -44.6%
Gross profit margin ERE -2.3 points
15.7% 18.0% (ERER
Profit for the year attributable to A2 JEFIZFE A
equity holders of the Company  FE{5 E R R
Recurring profit# S S R # 80,714 145,488 -44.5%
Non-recurring profit/(loss)” JEEFEMER (BE) A 176,546 (12,932)
Total et 257,260 132,556 +94.1%
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
Basic earnings per share FRAEAKXBF
— For profit for the year —FERE 36.82 19.05 +93.3%
— For profit for the year from - REBELE
continuing operations ¥BZ2FAmT 36.51 21.51 +69.7%
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
Proposed dividends Bk S
Interim dividend per share FE P RS 3.8 4.2
Special dividend per share FARFFRIE S 11.2 3.8
Final dividend per share SRR ER B 2.2 5.5
Special dividend per share TR E 12.8 45
Total dividends per share for the year & F &M% 84 &t 30.0 18.0 +66.7%
# Balance included profit for the year attributable to equity holders — * AEERE IR LD /ﬂféﬁ‘u HFENER J*;EF S A B
of the Company, excluding gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ%é#f‘“’f‘“ LRI M E N8 L al Woas R A
from continuing operations and profit/(loss) for the year from B ORI BT FER T (EE)

discontinued operation
g Balance included profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued — * RN E ORISR FEENF 7 (E

operation and gain on disposal of subsidiaries from continuing 1E) RGBSR HER B L ]2 Yzs

operations
(HK$ Mil & &8 1) (HK$ Mil B &% 7T)

257
2,500 2,326 2,308 200 |
2,000 1,869 — - 1,830 200 —
1,500 —— — — — — 150 133 —
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

“In the past two years, our Group has focused on consolidating
and renovating our production capabilities and facilities. We are
now ready to rebuild our sales force and take further actions
to capture new market trends and demands. Shareholders can
expect to see the first stage of our transformation to play out
over the next three to five years. We are of the view that our
Group has the competence and right strategies to rebound from
the trough.”

Mr. Chan Ho Man, Daniel
Chairman
\_
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MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Notwithstanding the increase in our reported profit, retail
sentiments have remained subdued in our major markets, in
particular the United States (the “US”) and the United Kingdom
(the “UK”), as discussed in the interim report of the Company for
the six months ended 30 September 2017 (the “Interim Report”).
Weak market conditions continued to reflect in our clients’ orders
for the second half of fiscal 2017/18.

Looking back at 2017, it was a year full of surprises and
unexpected political events. Despite maintaining moderate
growth in 2017, the global economy was clouded by geopolitical
instability.

Brexit was only one of the examples of the renegotiations
happening around the world as a result of inward-looking
policies. The ongoing trade disputes between the US and her
many trading partners, including China, have raised concern over
the prospects for global trade and an increase in trade barriers
has weighted on the global economy.
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In Asia, Japan continued to be caught in its lingering economic
structural problems, while the US’ withdrawal from the Trans-
Pacific Partnership (“TPP”) has posed further risks to the trading

environment of the region.

In respect of the footwear industry, the US and UK markets
recorded sluggish sales performance owing to weak store traffic
and problems with inventory. The filing for bankruptcy protection
by several footwear brands and retail chains also reflected the
unfavorable market situation.

Strategic goals:

Taking a prudent and proactive approach to growth.

2. Investing in technology and innovation to provide effective
solutions to customers.

3.  Asset enhancement.

4.  Talent development.

Operational goals:

1. Seek an optimal scale to balance business volume and
profitability, by focusing on high profit products with long-
term growth potential.

2.  Continue with the deployment of lean manufacturing and
semi-automation in the southern Vietnam and Cambodia
production bases.

3. Enforce stringent cost control measures in light of weak
market conditions.

4.  Attract, retain and engage talents from diverse backgrounds
to strengthen the Group's professional management.

Financial goals:

Adopt prudent financial management.
Maintain a healthy financial position.
Improving the Return on Investment (ROI) in the long-term.

> ® N =

Maintain a broadly stable dividend policy while seeking to
deliver higher payouts if deemed appropriate.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

OUR

MISSION
EMRE

To partner with leading brands in
making the best lifestyle products to
meet and create consumer demand in
footwear and related products.

HEAEmESEREREFENER -
LRRRiREREEHERK
HEERNEX -

\_

OUR

VISION
B RR

To become the leading lifestyle
footwear company trusted by premium
brands for value creation and
innovation.

BAEEEREEREN

FERSHEBAF

ERAEEERENB® -
J

Look Forward to a Rebound

In spite of the continued challenging environment, our will
remains strong to adopt appropriate and timely strategies to lead
our Group to walk through this temporary shady moment. In the
past two years, the Group has been focusing on consolidating
and renovating its production capacities and facilities. We are
now ready to rebuild our sales force and take further actions
to transform Kingmaker’s business in line with its strategy to
capture new market trends and demands.

Shareholders can expect to see the first stage of this
transformation to play out over the next three to five years as we
plan to invest to respond to the strong “pull” from the market for
our products. At the same time, we will embrace digitalization as
the essential means to sustain our long-term competitiveness.

To maintain resilience amid lackluster market conditions, the
Group will continue to uphold its core business strategic
goals towards the pursuit of profit margin enhancement and
shareholders’ value.

8 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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A Prudent and Proactive Approach to Growth

We seek to grow by focusing on serving customers whose
products are aligned to key underlying trends that drive long-term
consumer demand.

As footwear fashion is in a constant state of flux and fluidity, it
is imperative for the Group to proactively evaluate its existing
customers as well as potential new customers. We therefore have
to always take a step ahead of the worldwide trends and evaluate
individual brand’s business direction before sales problems
emerge, thereby effectively managing our risks.

We seek to establish long-term partnership relationships
with brands, and all new business starts on this premise. A
prerequisite is for the brand to be able to provide a consistent
order flow over the annual work cycle. Seasonal plans must
also be provided in order to better manage our factories. New
customers are evaluated on their potential growth and current
financial stability. A series of check and evaluation processes also
apply to the vetting of new customers.

In addition to serving major footwear brands, the Group’s new
concept line production setting can also accommodate smaller
niche brands which represent the upcoming trend of the industry.
These currently include German brand K1X and US brand
McCubbin.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

Investing in Technology and Innovation to Deliver
Differentiation

At Kingmaker, the ultimate objective is to help customers to
differentiate their products in the marketplace. It can also
mean designing and delivering a solution that offers lower total
transaction costs.

To achieve this goal, the transition from traditional production line
setup to concept lines and more automation is underway.

ETRMRAINRENEREZRL

EEZRBABRDARENEPITEERTENE
o WEE-EEFTERERSBRARNER

X

REFULER AEELESUERLEERER
ENRKBRESS XS AEZEBETFe

Compared to traditional line processing, the number of workers
on a concept line can be significantly reduced. The design of
a concept line allows us to improve our quality checks with
immediate spotting and correction of errors. While traditional line
processing allows us to count for output on certain days of each
month, daily output of a concept line is more transparent. The
concept line production method certainly enables faster shipment
to customers.

EEGEEGMAL  BIRNRKEESRATHT
ABER KR o NRKEERORET LA 2
THERMER - FRAFIPT BN IR AU ESER /MR
KEESRNBEEERER MEERLIERD
BRIET BAEERSEANRLA FHEES-
IRKEESNEEEERFIRERIEATP

T ER:

Innovation and digitalization will also be our main focuses,
as they represent the means by which we can deliver quality
products, while at the same time addressing increasingly short
production lead times.
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We will therefore continue to explore and apply innovative
technologies, including lean manufacturing and semi-automation
processes to raise operational efficiency and reduce reliance on
manual labor. We will also seek digitalization to achieve real-time
monitoring and prompt reaction to various operational processes,
from production planning to products delivery.

Other investments will include the establishment of an additional
R&D center and factory equipment. These planned investments
are estimated to aggregate to more than US$10 million over the
next few years.

Asset Enhancement to Improve Long Term Return on
Investment

During the year, the Group has leased out its self-owned property
in Shanghai to independent third parties. In Hong Kong, the
Group will reorganize the office and warehouse, and seek to
lease out some self-owned properties to independent third
parties as soon as practicable. These will further generate yields
on the assets.

As the investment properties now generate a stable rental income
and return on investment (ROI), we have separated the operating
results and position from the continuing operations to property
investment held by the Group under the heading “Operating
Segment Information”. More importantly, this will provide a clearer
picture to assess the overall financial performance and position of
the Group.

The Group continues to explore and evaluate the potential value
of the Zhuhai factory premises. Considering the development of
the Greater Bay Area, the Group is formulating the development
potential of this property and may include it in the asset
enhancement program and transfer it to investment properties if
appropriate.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

Talent Development

We develop and retain a diverse and talented team of people
who are committed to making our customers successful and to
growing a world-class company that can share in that success.

We believe that to maintain Kingmaker’'s competitive edge,
we must attract, select and retain motivated employees from
a diverse range of backgrounds. To succeed, it requires more
than ensuring competitive compensation, benefit and incentive
structures. It means implementing a range of talent management
programs designed to match the right people to the right jobs;
and offering our employees rewarding work at different phases of

their careers.

Succession Planning

As the Group’s business grows, we continue to recruit and
nurture young talents with a view to building a robust second-
generation management team within the next three to five years.
Another ongoing task is to train local staff members of various
centers to take up local management roles in future.

The injection of new blood into management will not only lower
the overall age profile of the executive team, but also ensure the
smooth implementation of our long-term business development
and facilities reengineering plans.

Qur experienced senior management members, who are
approaching their retirement ages, will gradually take up non-
executive and mentoring roles to ensure a smooth transition.

| would like to thank Mr.
contribution to the Group. During his tenure, he assisted the
Group to build and maintain a strong client base and business

Phillip Kimmel for his 24 years of

network. After the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, he will
be re-designated as a Non-executive Director with effect from
1 September 2018 and continue to serve our major customers
and investment community.

With dedicated efforts, the Group is well on track to achieve its
succession goals. | take pleasure to welcome Mr. Todd Wertz
who will take up the role of Vice President of Marketing and

Business Development.
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Continuous rising costs and tightening human rights regulations
will remain a major pressure for footwear manufacturers.
Continuous economic development and an ageing population are
also posing increasing recruitment difficulties for the industry.

In light of the prevailing uncertainty of the global economy,
management continues to be cautious towards the market and
operating environment in the coming year. Our long-term goals
remain to pursue profit margin enhancement and shareholder
value. To achieve these goals, we will remain selective in ongoing
investments and capacity development, led by careful business
portfolio planning.

Looking to the coming year, the global economy is not expected
to show significant growth. Nevertheless, new trends in
fashionable athleisure footwear are expected to bring this product
category back to a growth track in fiscal 2018/19.

While we are cautiously optimistic about a rebound in the next
financial year, we will stay alert to potential external risks that
may have an impact on market demand. To maintain its cost
advantage, tight cost control principles will continue to be applied
to the corporate and manufacturing operations.

Despite some challenges in the macroeconomic environment,
we are confident that the trend towards a healthy lifestyle will

continue to drive demand for sportswear products.

Our manufacturing business will seek to capitalize on this trend.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

Concluding Remarks

We are excited by the path of development of our business and
are optimistic that the investments we are making will position
Kingmaker for enduring success. The Board is of the view that
the Group has the competence and right strategies to rebound
from the trough.

The Group has a long track record of delivering results amid
cyclical changes and macroeconomic challenges. Our time-
proven business model will help the Group in bracing for the new
challenges of tomorrow. It will also support our long-term mission
of being a leading provider of footwear products in the Asia
Pacific region.

Our strong customer relationships and renewed capability in
serving customers’ new product development requirements in
today’s challenging marketplace are favorable to our continued
SuUCCcess.

We take pride in our loyal staff team, who have demonstrated
resilience and adaptability to realize the Group’s development
blueprint, as well as the forward vision of our outstanding
management team to ensure sustainable growth.

A strong financial position is central to the Group’s success.
We will continue to adopt prudent financial management to
ensure the Group’s healthy growth, while allowing us to invest
in promising projects and to maintain a healthy dividend payout.
With every plan and move, the Board upholds the principle of
consistently creating shareholder value.

14 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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The continued progress of our businesses in the face of
challenging market conditions validates the strength of the Group
and the capabilities of our team. | wish to take the opportunity
to thank my fellow directors, senior management and all staff
members for their performance and service. | would also like
to thank all our shareholders, suppliers, business partners and
customers, whose support has contributed to our resilience
over a period of macro challenges, business remodeling and
production competence uplift.

By order of the Board
Chan Ho Man, Daniel
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018

Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR @51 m A i

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Board is pleased to report the annual results of Kingmaker
Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018. Set
out below are discussions on the various aspects of the Group’s
financial results.

Turnover

During the year ended 31 March 2018, turnover from
continuing operations thus decreased by 36.4% year on year to
approximately HK$1,165 million (2017: approximately HK$1,830
million) while business volume (pairs) dropped by 41.2%.

The decline in turnover was mainly attributable to sluggish retail
sales in the US and Europe, as reflected in slowed orders in
particular during the second half of the financial year. Apart from
the macroeconomic reasons, the decrease was also resulted
from the Group’s more selective sales strategy after it undertook
a re-evaluation of its business model, client and product mix.
With this refined strategy, the Group aims to shift its focus onto
products with higher profits and value in the long run. These have
led to a decrease in the overall manufacturing scale of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit

As one of the measures to enhance production efficiency and
to cope with the industry trend towards smaller batch sizes and
more product styles, the Group expanded the conversion of
traditional production lines into concept lines during the year. The
setting up of the concept lines were also accompanied by further
investments in lean manufacturing and process automation. While
management is pleased to witness initial results of the concept
lines in improving the speed, flexibility and efficiency of delivery,
additional staff training and product development costs were
inevitably incurred in the short term.

Other cost factors including increasing minimum wages in
Vietnam, rising leather and other material costs, and the
appreciation of the Renminbi and Vietnam Dong, also had a
negative impact on the gross profit.

On the other hand, as a result of less labor input for each
concept line and a reduced production scale, labor and salaries
decreased significantly by approximately HK$127 million.
However, its proportion to turnover rose 0.7 percentage point
to 20.9% (2017: 20.2%) owing to the significant drop in the
topline. Subcontracting charges also decreased by 61.0%
to approximately HK$14 million (2017: approximately HK$36
million), or 1.2% (2017: 1.9%) of turnover.

The gross profit margin dropped to approximately 15.7% (2017:
approximately 18.0%) as a result of the above factors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Net Profit

The Group recorded a net profit from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$257 million (2017: approximately HK$133 million),
representing a significant increase of 94.1% year on year. This
was principally attributable to: (a) a non-recurring profit of
approximately HK$174 million from the net gain on disposal
of Kingmaker Footwear (Zhong Shan) Co., Ltd., which was
recognized and reflected in the interim results of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2017; and (b) the writing
back of an overprovision for prior years’ income taxes in the
amount of approximately HK$40 million. Excluding the one-off
items, recurring profit declined 44.5% year on year.

The net profit also took into account a share of losses of
associates amounting to approximately HK$11.6 million (2017:
approximately HK$1.2 million).

On a positive note, product mix enhancement efforts have yielded
a 4.8% increase in the average selling price (“ASP”). Going
forward the Group aims to move its ASP further up by engaging
in the production of more higher-value products.

Earnings per share for the year increased by 93.3% year on year
to approximately HK36.82 cents (2017: approximately HK19.05
cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Key Financial Ratios

Healthy financial ratios were maintained during the year:

° Debtors’ turnover increased to 37 days for the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: 31 days);

° Stock turnover was 97 days (2017: 76 days) owing to a
temporary holding of stock on customers’ request;

° Creditor turnover increased to 82 days (2017: 79 days);
° Strong liquidity with net cash in hand of approximately
HK$804 million as at 31 March 2018 (2017: approximately

HK$776 million);

° Current and quick ratios were 2.4 and 2.1,
(2017: 2.1 and 1.8, respectively).

respectively

Final and Special Dividends

In anticipation of ongoing strong cash generated from the
manufacturing and investment properties segments and
considering the Group’s healthy financial position, the Group
pledges to continue its dividend policy of sharing results with
shareholders.

Accordingly, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend and special dividend of HK2.2 cents (2017: HK5.5
cents) and HK12.8 cents (2017: HK4.5 cents), respectively, which
together with the interim dividend of HK3.8 cents (2017: HK4.2
cents) and special interim dividend of HK11.2 cents (2017: HK3.8
cents), represents a payout ratio of 81.5% (2017: 94.5%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

We work alongside customers as their production partner, and
provide a broad range of quality manufacturing solutions in
support of the customers’ brand building and enhancement
efforts. We also provide a diversified operational platform to meet
customers’ risk management requirements.

Continuing Operations - Manufacturing Business

The Group operates two core manufacturing bases in southern
Vietnam and Cambodia. Our production network also includes
research and development (‘R&D”) centers, located in southern
Vietnam, Cambodia and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), as well as two outsole factories in southern Vietnam and
Cambodia. In addition, the Group holds a 40% interest in a joint-
venture factory in central Vietnam.

The relocation of production activities from our higher-cost base
in Mainland China to more cost-effective sites in Southeast
Asia has helped renew our cost competitiveness against rising
manufacturing expenses and squeezing margins. Management
believes the current geographical mix will enable the Group to
maintain flexibility in adjusting its production to cope with clients’
needs and market changes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The relocation program has brought 88.9% of the Group’s total
production lines to bases in southern Vietham and Cambodia,
with 11.1% being retained in Mainland China. In the long run, it
is expected that more than 90% of our production capacity will
be located in Southeast Asia, where the Group can enjoy lower
costs and more attractive tax and customs policies.

As at the year-end date, the Group had a combined production
scale of 38 concept and traditional processing lines, aggregating
to an annual capacity of around 12.3 million pairs, which were
70.0% utilized (2017: 85.0%).

In southern Vietnam, there were 21 concept lines and 5
traditional lines in operation, while in Cambodia we had expanded
to 5 concept lines and 3 traditional lines. Upon successful trial
of the concept lines during the year, we plan to set up additional
concept lines in southern Vietnam and Cambodia in the coming
years. By the end of year 2020, we expect to have an aggregate
of 18 traditional lines and 32 concept lines mainly in Southeast
Asia.

In terms of output, the Southeast Asian production base
contributed 82.2% of total production (2017: 85.9%) in pairs
of footwear, while Mainland China accounted for 17.8% (2017:
14.1%) of total production.

The geographical distribution of markets shifted as a result of
the change in client portfolio. European markets’ contribution
increased to 33.7% (2017: 31.6%) whereas turnover from the
US dropped to 14.7% (2017: 20.9%). Turnover generated from
Asia and other areas increased to 35.8% and 15.8% respectively
(2017: 33.7% and 13.8% respectively).

Premium casual footwear was still the major product category,
accounting for 55.5% (2017: 52.8%) of turnover. Babies’ and
children’s footwear and rugged products generated 18.2%
(2017: 18.2%) and 15.5% (2017: 12.4%) of turnover respectively.
The clearance sale effect on the athleisure product category, due
to an over-expectation of demand back in 2015, continued to see
its contribution reduced to 10.8% (2017: 16.6%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group was able to utilize its flexible production capability to
cope with changing customer preferences. The ongoing strategy
is to consistently shift to higher-profit products and brands.
Management will cautiously monitor and adjust the client portfolio
and product mix in order to maintain profitability and to capture
market trends.

Major customers for the year included Asics, Clarks, KIX,
Skechers and Wolverine, with the top five customers’ aggregate
contribution remaining quite stable at 93.7% (2017: 93.5%) of
total turnover. With a flexible production setup and specialized
services, the Group is confident of securing new customers and
products targeting different market segments.

Key developments in the Group’s production centers include:

Southern Vietnam

Our southern Vietnam production base has over the years
successfully built a healthy client mix with balanced geographical
distribution. The US’ exit from TPP therefore had minimal impact
on our business in southern Vietnam. Management will, however,
maintain caution with regard to the development of recent
protests in Vietnam.

Having completed the construction of new factories on an
adjacent site, the Group has set up another manufacturing
platform for upcoming new orders. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group also completed in obtaining the land use right of another
plot of land with a site area of 100,000 square meters located
about half-an-hour’s drive from the existing facilities. This new
site will be reserved for future expansion purposes.

The southern Vietnam production base contributed 62.1% (2017:
58.4%) of total volume output.

Cambodia

Capacity in Cambodia underwent enhancement and improvement
during the year with the setting up of more concept lines. The
Group will seek to further improve the operational efficiency of the
Cambodian factory, as this is a key to fulfilling future orders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

It contributed 20.1% (2017: 20.8%) of total output in terms of
pairs of footwear despite the removal of 2 of its production lines
to southern Vietnam.

Mainland China

Our manufacturing activity in Mainland China is mainly based
in Zhuhai in southern China. Despite a reduced scale, the
proportionate contribution of this production base to the Group’s
overall output increased slightly owing to an upgrade to the
facilities.

Management has continued to restructure and integrate
resources in Mainland China to ensure a stable output of niche
products to supplement the Southeast Asian centers. The center
in Mainland China will also maintain its function as an R&D
platform.

In line with our relocation program, management will continue to
explore any feasible solutions to make good use of our remaining
facilities in China.

Investment in associates

The operation of the 40%-held joint venture with Evervan Group
(“Evervan”) in central Vietham commenced in March 2017.
Evervan is a leading international footwear manufacturer. As at 31
March 2018, 3 production lines were in operation.

In view of the operating results and performance of the
associates during the year, the business plan has lagged
behind the original schedule. In the coming year, management
will undertake a thorough review and will continue to monitor
its performance, and in the event that its operating results
deteriorate further, we may consider suspend our further capital

investment.

A share of losses from associates amounting to approximately
HK$11.6 million (2017: approximately HK$1.2 million) was
incurred during the year.

As always, we will continue to be on the lookout for lucrative
opportunities to further expand our business, with the ultimate
aim of bringing greater value to our shareholders in the long run.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Discontinued Operation — Retailing Business

The retail unit gradually wound down its operation from
September 2016 and all major retail operations were ceased as
at 31 March 2017. During the year, the retailing unit recorded a
gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$2.3 million
(2017: HK$NIl).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operation by internally and
generated cashflow and banking facilities provided by its
bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$804 million (2017: approximately
HK$776 million).

The Group is substantially debt-free. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had banking facilities amounted to an aggregate sum of
approximately HK$99 million (2017: approximately HK$99 million)
with various banks. Out of the trade and overdraft banking
facilities of approximately HK$99 million (2017: approximately
HK$99 million) in Hong Kong being granted to the Group, HK$0
(2017: approximately HK$0.8 million) had been utilized as at 31
March 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the current ratio was
approximately 2.40 (2017: approximately 2.07) based on current
assets of approximately HK$1,117 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$465 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 2.04 (2017: approximately 1.79).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having
considered the major expansion plans of the Group, including
Vietnam and Cambodia in the next two to three years, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity
to meet its current and future working capital requirements on its
operations and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenditure are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the RMB,
the Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) and the US dollars (“‘US$”). It is
the Group’s policy to adopt a conservative approach on foreign
exchange exposure management.

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the Hong
Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate or the London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate.

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations and to minimise the Group’s financial
risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group cautiously
uses derivatives financial instruments, principally forward
currency contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes
only, for hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s
receivables and payables.
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The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose
from the net cash flows and the net working capital translation
of its PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries. The management of the
Group will actively hedge the foreign currency exposures through
natural hedges, forward contracts and options, if consider
necessary. The management of currency risk is centralised in the

headquarter of the Group in Hong Kong.

Capital Structure

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$1,221
million as at 31 March 2018 (2017: approximately HK$1,146
As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing bank borrowings (2017: nil), resulting nil% (2017:

million).

nil%) of the shareholders equity.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled
8,274,000 of its ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$18,566,000 excluding transaction cost. The repurchase
of the Company’s shares during the year was effected by the
Board, pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted by the
shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share
of the Company.
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Details of the shares repurchase during the year under review are

as follows:

July 2017 ZE—+F+ A 230,000
August 2017 ZE—+F N\ A 2,172,000
September 2017 —Z—+ % 1 A 384,000
January 2018 —Z— \F— A 1,068,000
February 2018 —Z— \4%E— A 3,254,000
March 2018 —Z— \F= A 1,166,000
Total A5t 8,274,000

The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of
approximately HK$17,739,000 has been debited to the share
premium account. An amount equivalent to the par value of the
shares cancelled has been transferred from the retained profits of
the Company to the capital redemption reserve.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.
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The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia, employed approximately 9,700
employees as at 31 March 2018. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels and
the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options and awarded shares may also be
granted in accordance to the terms of the Group’s approved
share option scheme and share award scheme, respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is delighted to present its
second Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”). This ESG Report herein focuses on providing an
overview of the environmental and social aspects of the Group,
and outlines how we seek to continually improve our operational
strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to
cope with the global standards of sustainability.

During the process of the preparation of this ESG Report, the
Group has conducted thorough review and evaluation of the
existing Group’s policies and practices.

ESG Report Scope and Boundary

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In order to comply with the disclosure obligations of “comply
or explain” provisions, this ESG Report has outlined the overall
Group’s performance in environmental protection, human
resources, operating practice and community involvement for
the financial year from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the
“‘Reporting Period”).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIS HHEBREIBHS

The Group acknowledges the importance of proper disclosure of ARERAIZEREBHEIINEZN - ARAR
business activities, believing it as the key to building trust with EEHEKEERKRREZEERBEE Pl K
investors and shareholders. For instance, this ESG Report will ESGIR&#HZRE AT HE :

highlight the following aspects:

. Emissions, use of resources and generation of waste; o B FMBBERMELEEEM:
e Employment and Labour Practices; e [ERRBEIFTH:

e Operating Practices; and e EEFH R

e Community Investment. e fEIEE-

OUR STAKEHOLDERS KA E

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of HRFHELERMIFEXESEK N ATERDEEZEA
our business, we make use of various communication channels & EKIfERZEBRREEFHELETHREK
to understand and engage our stakeholders. The probable 22t o #5170 & &) °] 82 B8 )% Bh LA J2 T (P9 60 7% 38 [z [E]
points of concern of the stakeholders and the way of our A AIIRM T

communication and responses are listed below.

HKEX Compliance with listing rules, and timely Meetings, training, workshops, programs,
and accurate announcements. website updates, and announcements.

B4 32 P BIF ETARA R RN B AE - g B TES 58 BRmEFR R

YN

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government
preventing tax evasion, and social inspections, tax returns and other
welfare. information.

B B ERERBAO P LT Rt G EA ERFD BFRE A R®RK
TiEe H At &K}
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IR HEBKREBHKRS

Investors

REE

Media & Public

HRERDR

Suppliers
fHtrER

Customers

'R

Employees

’E

Community

HE

Corporate governance, business
strategies and performance, and
investment returns.

CEER EBRBRRA ARREAD
7

Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human right.

TrEER RERAE-

Payment schedule, and stable demand.
NRERREBER K-

Service quality, service delivery schedule,
reasonable prices, service value, and
personal data protection.

RSB X RISIEMHE SBER R
BEREABBRRE-

Rights and benefits of employees,
compensation, training and
development, work hours, and working
environment.

EEMENEBEHN #HE HIIEER.
TERBRIERE-

Community environment, employment
opportunities, community development,
and social welfare.

HEBRRE EREE HEERIMSE
Ao

Briefing sessions and seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings,
issue of financial reports or operation
reports for investors, media and
analysts.

AEERe g SR RERE-
MIREE KBRS MERHMBRE
FEERSE -

Newsletters on the Company’s website.
TEZR A B 48 0t B IR AR

Site visits.
B

After-sales services.

ERIRTS -

Union activities, training, interviews
with employees, internal memos, and
employee suggestion boxes.

TeED B EBEFHK FERDES
BRBRUEEERME

Community activities, employee voluntary
activities, and community welfare
subsidies and donations.

MHEEE EERIEH ttREMNMHAM R

B
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HEBKREBHRS

PART A. ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

With over three decades of operations, the Company has grown
into a reputable manufacturer of footwear for famous brands
including Asics, CAT, Clarks, Stride Rite, K1X and Skechers, and
has operating factories and offices located in China, Vietnam,
Cambodia, Taiwan, Macau and Hong Kong. Being one of the
major footwear manufacturing groups in Asia, we recognize our
corporate duties and obligations to protect the environment. As
such, we have integrated the idea of sustainability into our day-
to-day operations by implementing various measures to reduce
carbon footprints and mitigate undesirable impacts on our
environment.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working
environment by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste
management, supporting environmental education and promoting
the idea of recycling and reusing. The Group has established
a set of management policies, mechanisms and measures on
environmental protection and natural resources conservation to
help ensure the operations of the Group is in line with the world-
class environmental protection practices. Moreover, we have
recruited third party professionals to conduct energy audit test in
order to assess and evaluate our existing energy saving policies
and to determine whether the adopted measures are adequate in
terms of saving cost and energy as well as increasing productivity
while meeting stakeholders’ expectations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Since our major operating factories are located in Vietnam
and Cambodia, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the
environmental issues and relevant measures that are applicable
to these two operating units. To achieve the environmental goals,
the Group has implemented the following measures:

° Comply with all applicable environmental laws and
regulations;

o Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental
impacts associated with the Group’s activities;

° Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of
environmental stewardship within the entire workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with provision of
necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on us, including but not limited to, “Law on Environmental
Protection and Natural Resources Management” in Cambodia
and “Law on Environmental Protection” in Vietnam. No confirmed
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group
in relation to environmental issues.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RI-HHENKREBHRS

Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) emissions mainly resulted
from three types of activities, including but not limited to, direct
vehicle emissions, direct air-conditioning at offices and factories,
and the use of purchased electricity. Direct GHG emissions are
very subtle as the production process of footwear only includes,
abrasive, gluing and drying, universal pressing and pressed lining,
repairing, shading, labeling, inspection, and packaging; while
other indirect emissions mainly arise from the use of business
facilities. We have implemented various measures to ensure that
the emissions are kept at the minimum, and to reduce the impact

of our business activities caused to the environment.

PR

AEEMRERE (DREEREDHREENRA
—HERE HPERETERERERHER BA
ERTHHNZEFHEERERARERBEENE
ERREREBHMFEFEN AABEENLEESR
REBEWNE A REE BRTERER &
fEe NRE wRLeR: mMEMCEEER
TEREER CBHERE KRB RMZEER
ARER BE R BB FE B KT MR 2 B AAIH i
XEDURBERNTE -

Electricity consumption BFIHFE 9,143,000
Motor vehicles RE 231,000
Generator BEM 37,000
Disposal of paper BRI 4R oK 21,000
Total emission of GHG BEREASEK 9,432,000
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Vehicles, forklifts and generators

10 motor vehicles are used to serve our management team
members, guests and clients, and 3 forklifts are used for lifting
and transporting heavy loads in Vietham and Cambodia factories.
In our business operations, employees are seldom required to
travel to different locations for work.

All usage of fuel and mileage of the vehicles are recorded by
drivers on a daily basis in order to monitor the usage of vehicles.
Furthermore, all vehicles are under regular maintenance check to
facilitate fuel consumption efficiency, ensure road safety and keep
carbon dioxide emission at its minimum.

The total mileage travelled by the vehicles was approximately
470,000 kilometers. The total consumption of fuel for both
vehicles and forklifts was approximately 87,000 litres; the total
nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides emissions were approximately
35,000 grams and approximately 1,000 grams respectively; while
the total particle emission was approximately 3,000 grams; and
the total carbon dioxide emission was approximately 231,000
kilograms.

Generators are used to support the operations in Cambodia.
The total fuel consumption was approximately 14,000 litres,
with a total carbon dioxide emission was approximately 37,000
kilograms. In order to help reduce the use of fuel and the
emissions of greenhouse gases, all machines and equipment
would be turned off when they are not in use.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR HEKEIGHRS

Air-conditioning

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, indoor temperature
is maintained at 24 degrees Celsius or above to reduce
unnecessary energy wastage. Air-conditioners are switched off
when they are not in use. The Group has also put notices at
prominent locations to raise employees’ awareness of energy

conservation.

Use of Resources

The Group always endeavors to promote sustainability and aim to
cease resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the
environment. Various measures have been implemented to attain
the goal of using resources efficiently. These measures have
been effectively communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring that
all employees understand clearly the importance of conserving
energy and make full use of the available resources during work.

Use of Resources Policy has been issued, and certain goals and
plans have been made to save energy. We have also assigned a
department responsible for energy management, which includes
carrying out regular inspections and monitoring the usage of
energy. We are aware of the significance of energy saving for the
business and the society, and have made several investments on
saving the use of energy and resources. The measures taken are
as follows.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Water Usage

Water usage arises from the production process of footwear
and the daily use of water by employees at the offices during
working hours. Monthly water consumption depends highly on
the production volume of the month and has a slight fluctuation
throughout the year.

At the factory in Vietnam, meters are installed to monitor the
water consumption which makes analyzing the consumption
index of each production stage easier. As for the Cambodia
factory, it is convenient for the site to source natural water from
wells in the nearby area.

In order to use water efficiently, the Group has installed automatic
water saving taps in toilets and has placed written notices in
conspicuous areas to remind staff to save resources. Moreover,
we have also consulted third party professionals to evaluate the
existing energy saving policies and suggest ways to improve our
measures.

We would continue to put more efforts to reduce unnecessary
water consumption. During the Reporting Period, the total
consumption of water in Vietnam site was approximately 333,000
cubic meters, with a total of approximately 266,000 cubic meters
of sewage discharged into pipes. There meters have not been
installed in the Cambodia factory. During the Reporting Period,
we complied with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
the discharge of sewage in Vietnam and Cambodia, and paid
Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park in Vietham and Manhattan
Industrial Zone in Cambodia sewage fee to handle the waste
water on our behalf. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.
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IR HEKEIGHRS

Electricity and Energy Usage

In consideration of the potential environmental threats to the
communities, the Group has made steady progress in reducing
its carbon footprints across the business. The Group’s electricity
consumption for the Reporting Period was approximately
14,640,000 kWh, mainly arising from daily consumption by the
offices and factories in Vietnam and Cambodia. Moreover, the
Group has recruited third party consulting company to perform
energy audit tests at the Vietham factory and provide suggestions
and comments on the existing policies for room of improvements
in electricity and energy usage.

The following are the measures that the Group has implemented
to preserve energy and electricity:

° Lighting, appliances, machines and equipment are turned
off when they are not in use to reduce energy consumption;

° Air conditioners and lights are turned off during non-office
hours, including lunch hours, and in idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices
into sleep mode or turn them off when they are not in
use (such as during customer visit and lunch time) during
business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air
conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure
they are operating efficiently;

° Printing machine in the office is set at energy-saving mode
by default, and the sleep mode is automatically turned on,
if not in use for a certain interval in time so as to reduce
unnecessary energy consumption;

° Used printer cartridges are sent to the printing company for
recycling; and

° Investment in technology is made to improve the efficient
use of energy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Packaging

In response to environmental protection, we have tried to
minimize wastage of packaging materials to the greatest extent
by reducing the use of new cartons through reusing and recycling

old card boxes. The following table sets forth the total usage of
boxes during the Reporting Period.

RIF-HEBNKREIBHKRS

B%

REHREFRE RAZERDEBEMHORE
RAREMBBEEERREKERI IR DR
HRER - TR IREREHSTHNERE-

Shoe boxes L8 950
Carton boxes A= 650
Total weight of packaging BRHEEE 1,600

Generation of Waste

The solid waste generated by the Group mainly arises from
day-to-day operations, including, but not limited to, office-use
paper, office waste and excessive materials generated during the
production process. In order to alleviate the pressure on landfills
and promote environmental friendliness, we have implemented
various measures to encourage recycling of office supplies
and other materials, and eliminating the over-consumption of
unnecessary products; prioritizing reuse and recycling over
disposal.

ELEBEEY
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RI-HHENKREBHRS

Both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are generated during
the manufacturing processes. In order to reduce the production
of solid waste, statistics of waste is recorded monthly in order
to keep track of the volume of disposal of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes. Employees are always reminded to use
resources carefully and avoid using excessive materials during

the process of shoe-making. The total hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes generated during the Reporting Period are
stated as follows.

RERRTEEEAERBEREEY ARLE
EEEEEREY T ARSEENREIE  UER
DEEREEEEVNRES KMBRIZER
BNOERER BEeTREREFFRBEN
ME - BREMEAEENEEEENRESTESE
WMBEEmT -

Non-hazardous waste mEREZEY 11,000
Hazardous waste BEEEEY 970,000
Total weight HWEE 981,000

The Group is highly concerned with the disposals of hazardous
waste and full compliance with Part D of Article 36 Chapter V
of the Vietnam Law on Environmental Protection and Law on
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources Management
of Cambodia. We have recruited licensed parties to handle all
wastes generated during the manufacturing process. During the
Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group in relation to waste disposal.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Employment and Labour Practices

As getting the right person for the right job by understanding
employees’ personality traits and unique talents is the
cornerstone to a company’s success, we regard employees as
one of the most valuable assets of the Group and aim at creating
a working environment that encourages diversity and respect,
enabling employees to exhibit individuality and creativity. As such,
we offer attractive remuneration and provide many internal and
external training opportunities to attract, motivate and retain the
right people.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all laws and
regulations in relation to employment that have a significant
impact on us. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group in relation to employment
aspects.

Employment

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Employment Law in Vietham and Cambodia as well as other
relevant laws and regulations related to employment protection
and benefits. We have a set of personnel policies and procedures
that set out the Group’s standard internal procedures relating
to recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays,
equal opportunities, compensation and dismissal, diversity
of the origins of our employees, anti-discrimination and other
human resources treatments and benefits, etc., to provide a
standardized and comprehensive guideline on work practice for
employees.

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, approximately 8,000
employees in the age from 18 to 45 are employed. We welcome
industrial experts to join our team, add value to our pool of
professional expertise of the industry, and bring in innovative
ideas.
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IR HEKEIGHRS

Attract and retain talents

Our remuneration policies are in line with prevailing market
practices and are determined on the basis of competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees.
Management has been constantly reviewing the employees’
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities.
Adjustments are made, usually annually, to conform to the
market standard in order to retain talents and ensure the offer is
competitive as compared to the rivals in the industry. A standard
package includes basic salary and variable incentive-based
remunerations which are distributed in accordance with the
individual employee’s performance. Share options and awarded
shares may also be granted in accordance with the terms of
the Group’s approved share option scheme and share award
scheme.

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunities

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working
environment where all employees are treated equally and
respectfully, and are entitled to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. Any kind of discrimination or
harassment based on the employees’ gender, age, marital status,
race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace is strictly
prohibited.

We always listen and respond to the requests from our
employees. It is the goal of the Group to create a friendly and
peaceful working environment. We encourage our employees to
provide feedback in relation to any employment-related matters,
especially when they encounter any unpleasant or undesired
treatments from colleagues or senior management. Employees
may lodge their complaints in writing form and place them in
the suggestion box at the office building. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for handling all cases and conducts
investigations. If any unfair treatments and harassments are
found and confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in writing
form to the employee who has done the wrongdoing and may
dismiss him or her depending on the seriousness of the incident.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various
welfare and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees
are entitled to extra number of days of paid leave according to
their job level, in addition to all public holidays and minimum
number of days of paid leave in accordance with the Employment
Law. Moreover, we also conduct a series of activities every year
to promote our Group’s corporate culture to our employees.
During the Reporting Period, we organized an annual dinner and
several gatherings for employees to mingle and have fun.

As most of our employees are female, the Group does its best
to ensure its female staff are feeling comfortable and happy
while working with us. During the Reporting Period, the Group
organized a wide range of activities including training related
to reproductive health care, health care of women, health and
welfare of pregnant women and many more health related topics.

In addition, 6 months of paid maternity leave are offered to all
pregnant employees of Vietnam factory to ensure that their job
positions are available when they return from their maternity
leave. As stipulated in our staff handbook, supports should be
offered to pregnant staff. At the Vietnam office and factory, labels
are provided to pregnant workers in order to remind other staff
to provide special assistance to them when needed. Last but
not least, employees who have children aged between 1 and 6
years old are entitled to subsidies if they are living in Binh Duong

Province in Vietnam.
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Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. The Group complies with the relevant
laws and regulations in relation to safety, as well as hygiene and
health.

As working in a manufacturing factory may expose our
employees to occupational hazards, we have established a
“Labour Safety Policy” which clearly details all the appropriate
practices and requirements in order to protect the safety of
our employees. For instance,
workers are required to wear
earplugs during trimming and
wear gloves during the process
of gluing. While using dusting
machines, workers are required
to wear masks. The Group has
also established a “Work Safety
and Health Policy” to make
sure that all staff are able to
receive proper care and medical
treatments in the case of injury.

Furthermore, the Vietnam factory has a “Safety Improvement
Team” to conduct random check on workers to ensure that they
are wearing proper work gear at work.

In addition, the Group has implemented the following policies
in order to create and maintain a good, comfortable, safe and
healthy work environment for its employees:

° Keep all emergency exits in the workplace unobstructed;

° Provide sufficient light at the workplace;

° Ensure that all devices, machines and working equipment
are safe;

° Carry out regular repair and maintenance work on all
devices and machines used in the workplace;

o Maintain high standard of hygiene in the workspace;

° Prohibit smoking in the workplace; and

° Conduct regular safety inspections and fire drills.
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Development and Training

The Group believes that investing in employees through
training will help promote job satisfaction, work motivation and
staff loyalty; therefore we offer opportunities that foster our
employees’ leadership skills and professional development. An
annual training schedule is in place to ensure our employees
are offered with training during the year in order to get updated
with information, knowledge and skills required at work. All
new joiners would receive induction training on their first day of
employment. The total number of training hours for the Reporting
Period was approximately 182,000 hours. The average number
of training hours completed by each male and female employee
were approximately 300 and 380 hours respectively.

The Group’s professional training programs cover a wide range
of specialties; some are on human rights, while some are on
safety and skills applicable to work. Moreover, employees
are also encouraged to attend external training courses and
seminars that help them gaining knowledge in the fast changing
business world. Any fees incurred for the courses or seminars are
sponsored by the Group.
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with the laws and
regulations applicable to the various production bases, as well
as the relevant international human rights conventions relating
to employees’ protection and prevention of child and forced
labour. Every employment is subject to a stringent internal review
process that involves a well-established monitoring procedure
verifying a candidate’s personal information in order to avoid
misrepresentation and any form of child labour. For instance,
the staff member responsible for recruitment collects the
identity proof from the candidates to ensure that the age of the
candidates fulfils the requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited.
At Vietnam, the law allows younger generation aged 15 or
above to work. As such, the Group has established a policy
for young employees (15 to 18 years old) to provide guidance
on the arrangement of welfare and work allocations. We strictly
follows the relevant laws and regulations, and provide adequate
protection for our employees. Employees’ rest time is well
respected by the Group, and any arrangement of overtime work
must be agreed by the employees voluntarily in advance in order
to prevent forced overtime work.

If any employment of child or forced labour is discovered, we
will immediately terminate the employment concerned. During
the Reporting Period, all employees were legally and properly
employed in accordance with the requirements of all applicable
laws and regulations.
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Supply Chain Management

We believe that building a sustainable supply chain and
promoting interaction and communication with suppliers
can strengthen the confidence of our customers and other
stakeholders. Therefore, we only maintain a long-term
relationship with credible, reputable, and qualified suppliers of
high quality products and services.

Although most of the suppliers are designated by our customers,
in order to control the quality of the materials more effectively,
we have an internal mechanism to assess and evaluate our
suppliers. We evaluate their background, qualifications, expertise,
experience, financial status, and professionalism, etc. Moreover,
social and environmental aspects are also important criteria for
supplier selection. Approved suppliers are reviewed regularly to
ensure the quality of the services and products purchased is up
to standard.

Product Responsibility

We strictly comply with laws and regulations in regard to product
responsibility in the PRC, Vietnam, Cambodia, Taiwan, Macau
and Hong Kong that have a significant impact on us, including,
but not limited to, the Consumer Protection Law of China,
China’s Law of Tort, the Trade Description Ordinance and the
Sale of Goods Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Law on Protection
of Consumer Rights in Vietnam. During the Reporting Period, no
confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by
the Group in relation to copyright infringement.

Our primary focus is to provide high quality services and products
to our customers. In order to build customer trust and loyalty,
the Group has established relevant policies which cover service
quality, intellectual property and privacy protection. At our factory
in Vietnham, we have a product quality inspection team that
monitors product quality and ensures the quality of products
is meeting our customers’ expectations. We also welcome our
customer’s quality control teams to come to our factories to
conduct quality inspections.
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During the Reporting Period, we did not make any
advertisements relating to products and services provided.
In case we do make any advertisements, we will adhere to
all relevant laws and regulations in relation to advertising and
labelling of products that have a significant impact on us to
ensure that we do not convey false or misleading message in
relation to our products.

If customers are not pleased with the products or service
quality, they may lodge a formal complaint and we would
respond promptly, conduct internal investigations and search for
solutions to settle the issue. Our management would contact the
customers (i.e. brand owners) regarding the issues directly.

In respect of privacy and confidentiality protection, the Group’s
employees are obligated to retain in confidence all information
obtained during the course of their employment, including, but
not limited to, trade secrets, know-how, customer’s information
and personal data, supplier information and other confidential
information. We also maintain information technology systems
with high level of security to prevent unauthorized access to
confidential information. Fingerprint identification facilities are
installed at the show room to allow only a small number of

authorized employees to enter into the show room.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly prohibits corruption and bribery committed
by its employees. In the case of conflict of interests, employees
must declare the concerns to management. In the case of
suspected corrupt practices, those should be reported to the
management. Employees are strictly prohibited to use business
opportunities, power and/or occupational position for obtaining
personal interests or benefits. During the Reporting Period, no
report of any corruption or bribery behavior was noted by within

the Group.

To prevent any corruption or bribery behaviour within the Group,
we brief newly joined employees on our anti-corruption practices
that we do not tolerate any form of corruption and will take the
most serious view of any attempt to commit corrupt practices.
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Community Investment

We understand the importance of giving back to the society.
Therefore, we encourage our employees to take part in
community services so as to contribute to a more sustainable
and harmonious society. In particular, we are devoted to helping
the orphans through making donations to charitable bodies,
building primary schools and participating in school visits.

Our employees are committed to caring for the elderly, women,
children and other vulnerable groups by organizing different
voluntary activities, such as inviting children with special
education needs to visit the Company, organizing parties and
giving out presents to children.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations to help
the poor and disadvantaged groups in the society for a good
cause with an approximate amount of HKD592,000. Second-
hand clothes and stationery were also donated to the people in
need.
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The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board is committed to ensuring the self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a Board with high caliber members,
Board Committees and effective internal audit and good systems
of internal controls. The Board and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Company regularly reviews the corporate governance
procedures and developments of the Company. The corporate
governance duties have been delegated by the Board to the
audit committee of the Company. The primary duties of the audit
committee in relation to corporate governance include developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board, so as
to enhance and to ensure the corporate governance practices
of the Company are in line with the relevant requirements. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the period under review.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2018.
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The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible
and effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/
her duty in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. During the year under review,
the members of the Board included:

Executive Directors:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Mumma, Adin David

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)
among the Directors.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The records of attendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings and annual general meeting, and relevant committee
members at Board committee meetings held during the year
under review are set out in the following table:
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Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/BTERERE
Audit Nomination  Remuneration Annual General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting

EREEE REZEE FWESE RRBEAS

Name of Directors Board
EEHE 8-
Executive Directors H{TE%

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & &2 + 4/4
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 17 R /4 % 4/4
Mr. Mumma, Adin David 5 A% % 4 4/4
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu EE L £ 4/4

Non-executive Directors #1TESE
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.

BXfEEE BEHEs ATat 4/4
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel B & 3 5t & 4/4

Independent non-executive Directors B HTES

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny % IF %t £ 4/4
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven # 75T £ 4/4
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel % & % £ 4/4
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Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim financial statements for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of

reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

Non-executive Directors

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the year under review, relevant materials on
legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all Directors,
namely Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian,
Mr. Mumma, Adin David, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Mr. Chow Wing-
kin, Anthony, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Mr. Tam King-ching,
Kenny, Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Ms. Chan Mei-bo,
Mabel, as to keep them abreast of any changes to the regulations
and disclosure obligations. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen,
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Mumma, Adin David, Mr. Wong
Hei-chiu and Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel also attended relevant
training courses on management, duties and responsibilities of
a director and/or other topics organized by external professional
bodies during the year under review to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since 2000
with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior executives from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising
from, including but not limited to, any proceedings brought
against them during the performance of their duties pursuant
to their respective service agreements entered into with the
Company.
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The Board considers that all meetings should be properly
convened. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the bye-laws of
the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary.
Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of
all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have
access to such minutes.
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Under the code provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
should establish a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of an
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors
as set out below:

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference to the
factors including salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the remuneration packages of the Directors are fair
and reasonable and has recommended the same for approval by
the Board. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 86 of this report.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2018
is set out below:
Remuneration band Number of individuals
HK$0 to HK$500,000
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000

a4 =

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates
for Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s
bye-laws in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. The policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In determining the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee will consider board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy and review the same as
appropriate.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee consisted of two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as set out below:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all
the existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by
the Company. Further, in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws and as resolved by the Nomination Committee, Mr. Kimmel,
Phillip Brian, Mr. Wong Hei Chiu and Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny
will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control systems.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit
Committee consisted of a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, interim and annual
reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviewed
and approved the external auditor’'s remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommended the Board for re-appointment of

the external auditor.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties, including:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditor are fair and reasonable.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review, the
fees payable to the Company’s external auditor for audit services
and non-audit services were HK$2,130,000 and HK$522,000,
respectively. The non-audit services relate primarily to tax
compliance and consultancy services.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting
period and of their financial performance and cash flows for
that year in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which reflect the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors’ responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
independent auditor with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2018 are set out on pages 93 to 101 of this
report.

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an
adequate and sound enterprise risk management and internal
control system and through the Audit Committee and, if
necessary, an external independent professionals to provide
internal control services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness
of these systems at least annually, covering material controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and strategic risk
control functions. The Board understands that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates
any material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company appointed Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited (“Baker Tilly”), an external
independent professionals to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by Baker Tilly to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of Baker Tilly as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
during the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversight risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the following principal
risks of the Group were identified and classified into strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.
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Risk Areas Principal Risks Bk EE FERBE

Strategic Risks Risk of economic recession B 2 e KEZIRE R
Unstable political environment of some BPRER PN EEREMTE
of the countries where we operate our & TRROECRRIETEE
production plants

Operational Risks No significant risks identified ZER R AR H B AR b

Financial Risks Risk of inflation/deflation B % A B BAR B HE b

Compliance Risks No significant risks identified AR E R Rk Al E AR R
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Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group adopts risk
management policy and procedure (the “Risk Management
Policy”) and maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified
major risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board,
the Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major
risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate the
relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on
its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group.
The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure that
risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate goals
in an effective manner.
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The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its
needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“‘SFO”). The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures,
and staff training arrangements, etc.

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.
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The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and announcements.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications.
Separate resolutions are required at general meetings on each
distinct issue. Each shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote in his stead.
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Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder,
who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a director of the Company, the shareholder must
deposit a written notice to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Details for nominating candidates
to stand for election as a director are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

(i) Any one or more shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders may submit a written request to make proposals
or move a resolution at a general meeting; or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting. Such request must be deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Details of the
requirements and procedures for making proposals or moving
a resolution at a general meeting are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office and at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Details
of the requirements and procedures for convening general
meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the
Company website.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company by addressing them to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at 17th Floor, Empress Plaza, 17-19 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by email to
kingmkra@netvigator.com for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will
forward:

1. communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the executive Directors of the Company;

2. communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chairman of the
appropriate committee; and

3. communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to the appropriate
management of the Company.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all voting at the Company’s general
meetings shall be conducted by poll. The Company’s bye-laws
have set out the procedures and requirements of voting by poll.
Such voting procedure would be explained by the Chairman at
the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for
all employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

The Company will continue its enduring effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try its
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet with
the continuous changing environment and for the benefit of the
shareholders.
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Huang Hsiu-duan,
Helen
B

Kimmel, Phillip Brian

mRA

Mumma, Adin David

HAR

FiR Bz

61 Executive director and
Chief Executive Officer
WITEERITHEH

66 Executive director
HITEE

68 Executive director
HITEE

68 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited

37

24

Madam Huang is a co-founder of the Group. She is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and
serves as a director for the subsidiaries of the Company. She
is responsible for formulating the overall business strategies
and future development plans for the Group, the purchasing
function and human resources management of the Group.
Madam Huang has more than 41 years’ experience in the
footwear industry. Madam Huang is the mother of Ms. Chen
Zi-yun, Fiona Apple and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares.

BUTRAKEEPAZ —-BARARAFMESERET
RARASEMBLARELES ARHITARERBERR
BRARER?E ARERBRANERER -EXLARR
MEREELR -EUTARFEMNERRER R E 285

Mr. Kimmel has been with the Group since 1994. He is
responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing, customer
relations. Mr. Kimmel has more than 42 years' extensive
experience in the footwear industry. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree from the University of Southern California and a
Master's degree from the University of Washington in China
Regional Studies.

FEER-ANEENMATEE - FEEERRECEHER
REFHASE MALEHEZRRBLF EELR &
BEFERAMMNASZELBUREREASHARRE LS

fiz -

Mr. Mumma is also an executive vice president of the Group.
He is in charge of the Group’s production and customer
relations. Mr. Mumma has over 35 years’ experience in the
footwear industry. Since 2000, he has started to provide
advice to the Company including the feasibility studies on
new projects, organizational structure, transition to lean
manufacturing system and labour matters. Mr. Mumma holds
a bachelor’s degree of Arts from the Millersville State College
in 1971.

SRENMRARERNTREH RAAEARENEERTP
BRI SEERERBFRELLR - RE_TTTEN
R—ERIARATHERR  ERAEE BEERREERMK
STIEHMAFRRRERE - FAER—NL—FEMilersville
State Collegefi % L 2 &+ &4 o
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EENRCEERASRME

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
HE R B IREY BHELH
Wong Hei-chiu 51 Executive director 10 Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer of the Group and
HER HOIESE company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible

for the supervision and management of the Group’s overall
financial matters and investor relations. Mr. Wong holds an
Executive Master's degree in business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’s
degree in business administration from Lingnan University,
Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising),
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, a fellow member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

BEAENAAREZERMBERALAIZARANE -EAL
BERERERAREVERUBEERREERG -1
REBETNABEMBAR L B R ERBHARHRERS
TR -RAMEEHM DREBGFRARGAMLEERS
8 ERWRAANNTEHMAERGEREAGHAD

Mr. Wong has over 27 years of corporate finance and financial
management experience in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr.
Wong is an independent non-executive director of Vico
International Holdings Limited,whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Prosperous Printing
Company Limited, whose shares are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of Hong Wei (Asia) Holdings Company Limited, whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from
December 2013 to June 2016. Prior to joining the Group in
2008, Mr. Wong has worked as the group financial controller
and company secretary in a Hong Kong listed electronics
manufacturing company for over 8 years; and as the finance
director and company secretary in another Hong Kong listed
wholesale and distribution company for over 4 years.
BERAERERTEARRB2IFORMBRHBEEI AL
RBRERRORBIAER L2 HSERERERD A
RBEHRERAGEMET 2 BRHRER DR 2 BILIFHT
EF B_E-ZHET-AEZZ—RESA BNABE (R
M ERERAR (—HARERAGEM M. A A)) 2 B I
TEE-BRERZZ\EMALKER BR—REEE
T EFHEARERSENBEERDAMERSE I
ERE-MEBR LM IBERDHAAEEMBEERAF
WERAF -
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i FR B4 TREFH BEER
Chow Wing-kin, 68 Non-executive director 24 Mr. Chow serves as a member of the Nomination Committee
Anthony, SBS, J.p. FHTESE and the Audit Committee of the Company.
ik BAEERFAAREEREGRERZEGZNE:

REMES ATF@L
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Mr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in Hong Kong
and England and Wales. He has been a practising solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 38 years and is currently a senior
consultant of the law firm Messrs. Guantao & Chow
Solicitors and Notaries. His principal areas of practice include
corporate and commercial, property law, probate and civil
litigation. Mr. Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting Officer
and member of South China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission. He is the Deputy Chairman
of the board of stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club.
He is also an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited, Ping An Healthcare and Technology
Company Limited and S.F. Holdings Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Maanshan Dingtai Rare Earth & New Materials Co., Ltd),
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange respectively.
Mr. Chow is the Chairman of the Process Review Panel of
Financial Reporting Council and a member of The Exchange
Fund Advisory Committee and The EFAC Governance Sub-
committee of Hong Kong Monetary Authority. Mr. Chow was
a non-executive director of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China City Construction Group
Holdings Limited) during the period from February 2015 to
October 2016 and an independent non-executive director
of Link Asset Management Limited as manager of Link Real
Estate Investment Trust during the period from May 2006
to May 2015 and Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited during the
period from September 2004 to June 2016, all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is the
former president of the Law Society of Hong Kong and was
the chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities
and Futures Commission.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENRCEERASRME

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
HE R B IRFH BEER
Chan Ho-man, 63 Non-executive director and 22 Mr. Chan has been with the Group since 1996. He is
Daniel Chairman responsible for formulate, advising the management on the
B FRTEZREIR corporate strategy and policy development. Mr. Chan also

serves as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
BREER-NANEMATEE - BERITHEERBREE
BEIGLEAEEEREZR RAENEFREZES TR

Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan is
also the company secretary of Kin Yat Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan has more than 39 years’ accounting and corporate
finance experience in Hong Kong.

BEERERRF ARG HMACEREERERCHMAE
SE-REAANMARGEEERRACDAME KA AN
REERET BRAEAEBOFRBGHARAANBLER-
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
ESNEREIEASRE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
i FR B TREY BHER
Tam King-ching, 69 Independent 24 Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Kenny non-executive director and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
BERIE BUFHTES Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a practising

72 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited

Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as a
member of the Restructuring and Insolvency Faculty Executive
Committee and the Insolvency SD Vetting Committee in the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
a past president of The Society of Chinese Accountants
and Auditors. Mr. Tam also serves as an independent non-
executive director of eight other listed companies on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, namely, Shougang Concord
Grand (Group) Limited, CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, Starlite
Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited (formerly Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited),
BeijingWest Industries International Limited, West China
Cement Limited, CCT Land Holdings Limited and Wisdom
Education International Holdings Company Limited.
ELERARAIBEREE G IR REZEERFMNERS
LB -BREEHESHM -RABAGHMAGZERE
ERMERRABERHEXSHMACER - BLERER
BN EERNMEERERE @R TRE e RNEERE
HERGEZRECRE - RABAEAGHALGAARR:
ERETHARM \BRBRAER LT 2 AR (EROA
(RB)ERLA TREREEBRAR EXREFRAA
BAEBAERARLNA (ABEEESEERAR) RAEL
BERARNE FEESKEERAR TREMEEERA
ARERUEBRBRERERAR) ZBUFNTES



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENRCEERASRME

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
HE R B IRFH BEER
Yung Tse-kwong, 68 Independent 13 Mr. Yung serves as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Steven non-executive director Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
HFI BUFHTES and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung

was the former Chief Executive Officer of Imagi International
Holdings Limited and was the former Chairman of Clear
Media Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As Managing Partner of Glocal LLC,
Mr. Yung has over 37 years’ management experience from
leading multinational companies in the media, entertainment,
consumer and retail industries. Mr. Yung began his career as a
producer with Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company
Limited and has since held various senior management
positions at The Coca-Cola Company in the United States
of America and Asia, served as Regional Managing Director
of AC Nielsen China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Korea and
as President of Nielsen Media International. He had been a
director of the Cable and Satellite Broadcasting Association
of Asia (CASBAA), and is currently a Director of the Child
Development Matching Fund.
REERRDAFMEEG TR URBEREEGRREZE
EHE - RALAEFEARZRERARZAETHAR 1
REEPIMERERRAZATER MEIRBRIMERL
Mo {ERGlocal LLCZEBABA KALEERBBITFRE
REBGCE AR RE HERTEERZERLR -
FENBEORERBDXERERAR ERECEZ B
BACREERTMBETOALARAEREESREER
i BEEBRIHRESRERATE & GEREE K
Nielsen Media International 2 #82 - %% & ff Cable and Satellite
Broadcasting Association of Asia (CASBAA/E £ + 35 A 7 & %
REHESES:
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EENRCEERASRE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
HE R B4 IREY BHELH
Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 46 Independent 7 Ms. Chan serves as a member of each of the Audit
e non-executive director Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
BUEHTES Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan is the founder of

74 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited

Mabel Chan & Co, Certified Public Accountants (Practicing)
and became the deputy managing partner of Grant Thornton
Limited in 2015. Ms. Chan has over 25 years’ experience
in professional accounting field in Hong Kong. She holds a
master degree of business administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2000 and a degree of
Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy from City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong (now known as City University of Hong Kong) in
19983. Ms. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a council member and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Ms. Chan is a
certified tax adviser and a member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong in 2010. She is the immediate past president
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the past president of The Society of Chinese Accountants
and Auditors, past president and council member of the
Association of Women Accountants (Hong Kong), and a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan
is also @ member of the Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel,
a member of Appeal Panel (Housing), a member of the
CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee appointed by the
Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development of Hong
Kong and a member of the Council of the Hong Kong Baptist
University.
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Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of another listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, namely Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. Ms.
Chan was an independent non-executive director of a listed
company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely
China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited during the period
from December 2011 to December 2014 and of another listed
company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, namely South
China Assets Holdings Limited during the period from May
2013 to March 2017.

B tREEERBRAEIRLETOS—RAR (MEMNRT
BROBRRATNBIFHNTES RLTA—RRBRAE
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Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
HE R B4 TRFH BELR
Hong Kong Office
ERNRER
Lai Chi-hang, David 51 Group 25  Mr. David Lai has been with the Group since 1993. He
RETE financial controller is responsible for the Group’s accounting and financial
EENKBE management. Mr. Lai holds a Master's degree in business
administration from University of Wales. He has more than
29 years' experience in auditing, financial accounting and
financial management.
FEEER-ANZFMALTRE - BEAKE 2GR
BEE - RAARARANAERIRERETEN EEEA
ERY MBEHARIBERLR-
PRC base
FEAEE
Yang Mu Lang 57 Senior manager 14 Mr. Yang Mu Lang has been with the Group since 2004. He
PN HITHE is in charge of the factory operation in Zhuhai. Mr. Yang has
more than 34 years’ experience in footwear factory.
BARELEER004EMALEE FEEEHRER EE B
FERRERABBMF L8R
South Asia base
HIEE
Hsu Ming-hsien, 59 Vice general manager 14 Mr. Jack Hsu has been with the Group since 2004. He is in

Jack
BRE

BlgE
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charge of the factory production in Vietnam and also factory
operations in Cambodia. Mr. Hsu has more than 36 years’
experience in the footwear industry.

APBEEN _STNFMAREE TR EHEBCEE
SHRRERBRERZEE FTAEEREXFRBIF 2L
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Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
HE R B IRFH BEER
Wertz Todd Anthony 49 Vice President, Marketing and N/A  Mr. Todd Wertz joined the Group in January 2018. He is
LB Business development TiEm@  responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing and business

MHEEREHRREIBE

development. Mr. Wertz has over 25 years’ experience in
the footwear industry. Prior joining the Group, Mr. Wertz
served as a Regional President (Asia) in K-Swiss International
Manufacturing Limited (“K-Swiss”) from 1998 to 2017. He was
mainly responsible for the establishment of legal entities and
standard operating procedures for quality control, in charge
of the manufacturing and supply chain management within
APAC, including Vietnam, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Thailand,
China and Taiwan; and the management of planning and
operations with OEM factories. Before joining K-Swiss, Mr.
WERTZ served as a sales manager in Trust Leather Company
and as a SMU manager in K-Swiss International from 1992
to 1993 and from 1993 to 1994 respectively. From 1995
to 1998, he served as a Line Planner and Finished Goods
Buyer in Pearl Izumi. In 2017, Mr. WERTZ also established
Lysi Solutions to act as OEM sourcing strategist and
turnaround specialist on helping companies to optimize their
supply chains, quality enhancement, software integration
management, corporate trainings and providing profitability
solutions.

XEREERZZ-NF-AMAFEE TEHEXSEMNH
& MHEREREBER NEERERTERER2FKR
BEMAXEEAN  R—ANANEE ZF— L FEEK-Swiss
International Manufacturing Limited ( [K-Swiss | ) & & 13 2 &
(M) XEEXTBEREKZREBRATEERHINRE
BERF VTEETAMBNHERHERER BHEEE-
He &% ZE +ERAE: NREEEROEMIKNAE
REE o RAEMAK-Swisshl - ARIR—NNZFE-AN=F
K= NZFZE— A NEFETTrust Leather Company &8 &
4833 L K-Swiss International ) SMUZ R » F @R — A EE
—NANERPearl lzumi EEAESRAGREARIFEE - =
T—+F  YEEBMUT Lysi Solutions® If T OEMER B &
MERCE¥BESR UHBCEELEMERE RAEE.
ERRMAEN CEBIRRBEBABRAR

Mr. WERTZ holds a bachelor degree of Arts in International
Relations from the University of Colorado in 1991. He also
studied in Tunghai University for several intensive Mandarin
Chinese language study programs.
XEER-NMN—SREGRENS AEERBEXEELE
fi- RENRENBBESREBEELEBRWRIE.
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Chen Zi-yun,
Fiona Apple
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Chen Yi-wu,
Ares
R

35

26

Number of
years of
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Bz EREY
Assistant to Chief Executive 11
Officer
THBH R
Vice president 2
BB
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Ms. Fiona Apple Chen has been with the Group since
2007. She was previously the Managing Director and was
in charge of the Group’s retailing business. She assists the
Chief Executive Officer for the implementation of corporate
strategies and coordination among different departments
and business units of the Group. She is responsible for the
overall administration and management information systems
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business operation in
Taiwan. She also serves as a director for the subsidiaries of
the Company. She holds a Bachelor's degree from National
Taiwan University in International Business. After graduation,
she studied footwear design at De Montfort University, the
United Kingdom. Ms. Chen is a daughter of Madam Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen and a sister of Mr. Chen Yi-wu Ares.
BF=MEB-_ZSLEMALREE -RAANAESLLE
BEARENTEEXL -RRBHTHASEZELEEBRE
BRIRAREXBREL AOHE - REEFARENBRITY
HERERAZRREEARERENEBEE - RIFNALRA
SEMBRARARTIES RARBUREAER LM T
BB m - 2E% 7 2 EDe Montfort University/ & R & -
FRERSH -RIBAERRR T 2R UAREE -
iopchER

Mr. Ares Chen joined the Group in 2016. Mr. Chen assists
the Chief Executive Officer for the Group’s production and
customer relations. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Arts in
Economics from Tamkang University. After graduation, he
continues to further his studies a master's degree in Business
Psychology at University of Leeds, United Kingdom. Mr. Chen
is the son of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen and a brother of
Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple.
BERARER_Z-—REMALEE -REEBETRARE
BASENEEREPHE REAAIRBEESE LB -
EXE RRREMNZASEENERE O EERT 20 R
FERBARKLIZ T TARTF=/NMEMSS-



The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the
year.

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the business, a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2018, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, are provided in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 6 to 67 of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
complied with applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material
respects.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 102 to 247.

Report of the Directors
EB8HKS
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Report of the Directors
S8R

An interim dividend of HKB3.8 cents per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK11.2 cents per ordinary share were paid
on 31 January 2018. The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK2.2 cents per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK12.8 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year to shareholders on the register of members on 6
September 2018. Details are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements. Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, such
dividends will be payable on or about 27 September 2018 in
cash in Hong Kong dollars.

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Wednesday, 22 August 2018. For determining the
entittement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 17 August 2018 to Wednesday, 22 August 2018, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, all duly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 16 August 2018.

Entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final and special
dividends is Thursday, 6 September 2018. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
4 September 2018 to Thursday, 6 September 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
dividends, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 September
2018.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. This

summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Results ¥E
Year ended 31 March 82 =A=1t—BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\f —T—+F —FT-RF —T-1F —ZT—@OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THEL FTET THET FEL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS &4 %%
REVENUE % 1,164,873 1,830,267 2,308,161 2,326,399 1,868,663
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
RABECEEBZBRAEH 227,629 163,083 152,797 124,952 109,281
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEH &%,/ (%) 25,634 (14,631) (12,743) (12,853) (13,515)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REBECEER 2 FREF 253,263 148,452 140,054 112,099 95,766
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B4 It @& %7
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation
RECRIEELERZEFNER,/ (BE) 2,165 (17,099) (20,682) (22,785) (28,174)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4 1% ¥l 255,428 131,353 119,372 89,314 67,592
Attributable to; 7 & 8 FE{f :
Equity holders of the Company AR Al EE A 257,260 132,556 120,205 92,480 67,592
Non-controlling interests JF 12 % % (1,832) (1,209) (833) (3,166) -
255,428 131,353 119,372 89,314 67,592
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Assets and liabilities

BEERAE

As at 31 March R=A=+—8

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-NFE —T—+F —T-RF —FT-HF —ZT-[NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER FET TET TET FTAEL
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT %1% - B & R & & 278,740 338,037 523,592 522,949 453,019
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS & { + 3178 € %18 91,048 51,587 86,579 78,159 55,321
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES & & ¥ % 197,718 136,484 123,247 115,692 110,694
DEPOSITS 4% - 3,916 22,440 24,793 21,625
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES ¥ & A a1k & 45,930 57,558 - - -
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS € fr & &% & 858 870 887 906 925
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS A] £ HH & & & - 530 489 892 1,490
CURRENT ASSETS &4 & 1,116,529 1,152,205 1,078,747 1,015,636 937,624
TOTAL ASSETS #& & 1,730,823 1,741,187 1,835,981 1,759,027 1,580,698
CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ & & (464,510)  (556,115)  (664,684)  (622,281)  (519,405)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERE1& (& (25,059) (19,877) (16,878) (20,228) (18,942)
TOTAL LIABILITIES £ & (& (489,569)  (575,992)  (681,562)  (642,509)  (538,347)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3E 122 i #E %5 (20,380) (19,638) (22,324) (19,335) -
1,220,874 1145557 1,132,095 1,097,183 1,042,351
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Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share ER > AR TRA N ERESLE 2 FERIEHD
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, B R B #E R &K M 5527 1228 o

are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements,

respectively.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws AA G Z AGI4HEIS B EZE— L\ —F QLA
of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which EHBIELESHE 2R E AR B HBER L
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata [A138 A MR 31 THAR

basis to existing shareholders.

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled its FR ' ARRREBHERSMAERAF ([BX
8,274,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — FT]) B8 B & 5+ $5 58,274,000/ f% 15 - EE R A
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors considered that the share M EEHRENRARAT ZRE ZREAF - i
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company 2 #ER 2 s EE 0T :

who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share

repurchases are set out below:

Aggregate

Number of consideration

shares Highest price Lowest price (excluding

repurchased per share per share transaction cost)

RELHE

Month/Year A F BEROHE BREBESE BRBEEE (FTEBEXZHE)
HK$ & 7T HK$ 7L HK$'000 F& T

July 2017 ZF—+F+ A 230,000 2.33 2.31 534
August 2017 —ZE—tF\ A 2,172,000 2.42 2.32 5,183
September 2017 —ZE—+F N A 384,000 2.48 2.46 950
January 2018 ZZE— \F— A 1,068,000 213 2.08 2,252
February 2018 — &£ — \F A 3,254,000 2.22 2.09 7,020
March 2018 =& — \F = A 1,166,000 2.28 2.20 2,627
Total 425t 8,274,000 18,566
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Further details of these transactions are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$475,608,000, of which
HK$15,257,000 and HK$88,768,000 have been proposed as a
final dividend and a special dividend, respectively, for the year
after the reporting period. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$104,782,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$592,000.

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 93.7% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 33.7%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

84 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited

%ER 52— S HIBHNI B RERM 27 -

oy

B b XX P ER & SN AR R S EAE IR B A R R
FARMERE BORXBEARAZEFMLHE

BEARE-NN\—FRARNETE RN
FZA=+—8 ARARAEIRZHERLE
#475,608,000/% 7T - H $115,257,000% 7T &
88,768,000 7T 5 Bl A F MRk E Hi 4 R& F R R
R B REFRIRE o I RAR RN EERA
104,782,000/ 70 A AR AL & 2 T XD UK

FA - AEEFEHEAZIHRE 2£592,0008 7T °

REBFER AEEHAREPZHEREAN
FEABHERB 7% MEFARBUZFAREFLZ
HERAMAS3.7% - AKE R R RHEER 2 KB
BIEAFEARBEINI0%

ARAEF HEMNEZBHEASRESAAE
BARRDAEBEITIRAE%INA £ 2 ERIARRIER
DEREAEELANER LEER 2 T EaiE

S o
I



The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Mumma, Adin David

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.p.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu and Mr. Tam King-ching,
Kenny will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Directors’ remuneration is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about, the execution of their duty in their respective offices. The
Company has maintained appropriate directors liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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The related party transactions as set out in note 33 to the
financial statements constitute connected transactions of
the Company exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Apart from those contracts
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a Director had a material beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: AANTEBERZHE:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SORERLEE

Through Percentage
Directly spouse Through of the
beneficially or minor controlled Company’s
owned children corporation Total issued shares
HARDT
EBERER BRTRGZ
Name of director EE# & HEERES ARFEFLZ BRIEHDLA @t B
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & 7% 22 &= 500,000 - 298,467,541 298,967,541 43.11%
(Note 1)
(FEET)
Mr. Kimmel Phillip Brian 17 R {4 % & 1,700,000 - - 1,700,000 0.25%
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel [ & 32 5,290,000 - - 5,290,000 0.76%
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu & 15 #8 55 4 2,875,000 - - 2,875,000 0.41%
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBs, J.P. 3,088,000 - - 3,088,000 0.45%
KR E  gEmRs ATHL
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
BHRIELE
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 0.27%
HFIxE
Note: B FE

1. These shares comprised (a) 263,960,041 shares held by King 1. 155 IR 1 B2 4E (@) FA King Strike Limited ( B3 &= %

Strike Limited, which was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan as to 2+ % E38.04% ) 5 B #1263,960,04 1 i fX 17
38.04%; and (b) 34,507,500 shares held by Fat Tat Assets Limited, K (o) Fat Tat Assets Limited (&= HH L+ &
which was wholly-owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen. LA ) F B 34,507,500 B 5 -
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Long positions in share options of the Company:
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RRBBREZFRE:

EFBWRS

Number of
options directly
beneficially owned

BEEEREEZ
Name of Director EE# & BREZE
Executive Directors: #1172 % :
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & % i 2 - 150,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1] R th 5t &£ 1,200,000
Mr. Mumma, Adin David 55 K5t £ 650,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =12 {8 %t & 500,000
Non-executive Directors: 3k HTEE :
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, ses, Jp. KL 4 » semnes Avmt 240,000
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel BR & 32 4 4 300,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: B FEHITESE :
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny B % 1E 7t & 1,320,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 F T 5t 4 450,000
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel fR =& 2 + 1,140,000

5,950,000

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Apart from as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures
in note 28 to the financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 28 to the financial statements.

Details of the Company’s share award scheme are disclosed in
note 28 to the financial statements. No shares were awarded
under the share award scheme for the year ended 31 March
2018.

Other than the share option scheme and share award scheme of
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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As at 31 March 2018, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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RZZB-NF=ZA=+—H U TARFEET
PR BB R RS % 3K A _EHE 3R B REER I AN X BRI
& MR FIB6IRATFE < B B flA:

Long positions: ¥R
Percentage of
Capacity Number of the Company’s
and nature ordinary issued share
of interest shares held capital
=R NN
2BITRA
Name £ SORERME FisEBERYE ZBADH
King Strike Limited (Note 1) (Bt&E1) Beneficially owned 263,960,041 38.06
EnER
Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen Plc Investment Manager 51,900,000 7.48
affiliated investment management KEKE
(Note 2) (FF7E2)
Mr. David Michael Webb (Note 3) Beneficially owned/ 41,970,000 6.05
David Michael Webb%t 4 ( Ff#¥3) Through control
corporation
EnlEr/
FRRELE
HSBC Global Asset Management Investment Manager 42,138,000 6.08
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 4) REKE
ELYRFKEERE (FB)BRAF (M)
Notes: Bt &

1. King Strike Limited was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen 1.
and her four children as to 38.04% and in aggregate 61.96%,

respectively.

2. The 51,900,000 shares were held in the capacity as an investment 2.

manager by Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen plc affiliated

investment management.

King Strike LimitedD Bl EHFHm L TH A
38.04% KR H & F &4 H£HEH61.96% o

Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen plc
affiliated investment management{E /& % & 45 38
#7451,900,0008% A% 15 ©
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3¢ Mr. David Michael Webb is interested in a total of 41,970,000
shares, comprising 14,614,002 shares held by him as beneficial
owner and 27,355,998 shares held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, the entire share capital of which is owned by Mr. David
Michael Webb.

4. The 42,138,000 shares were held in the capacity as an investment
manager by HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

et
EY:x

To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 102 to 247, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

Provision for inventories

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had net inventories
of HK$170 million, representing 15% and 10% of
the Group’s total current assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of the inventory provision
requires significant management judgement, which
includes judgement about the recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods and the future usage of
raw materials.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7 and 20 to
the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the ageing analysis of the Group’s inventories.
We recalculated the inventory provision based on
management’s estimate and assessed the assumptions
being used in the inventory provision calculation by
reviewing the basis, the rationale and the consistency
of the inventory provision estimate. We assessed
obsolescence provisions by considering the inventory
level against historical inventory turnover days and
substantively checked to both past and subsequent
sales and usage information on selected inventory
samples. We also discussed with management on any
inventory items with potential obsolescence problem.
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Key audit matter

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$198 million, representing 32% of the
Group’s total non-current assets and 11% of the Group’s
total assets. Management appointed an external valuer
to determine the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties twice a year. The valuation of the investment
properties at fair value was highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to
the rental value, rental growth rate, market yield, market
knowledge and historical transactions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the
financial statements.

BREBEITEER

REYFE R FEEE

R—_ZE—NE=ZA=+—8"
198,000,000/ L - D RIMEE R EEEERDEERTE
RN BENS2%N11% - BEEEBE RTINS LEMEER
RETE BEEREMENAFE-BREVENAFEGE
BEmEARMEFTMRE  flrEfeEs Rk,
MEWER MEABRELXSE@ G REB&-

EEENREMEE

1 B 45 R 0 B % R R P RS 16

96 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by management and the external valuer in the
valuation methodology about the property related data
supporting the fair value of the investment properties. We
considered the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuer. We also assessed the disclosures
relating to the significant assumptions.
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Key audit matter

Tax

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had tax payable of
HK$165 million and deferred tax liabilities of HK$24
million, representing 39% of the Group’s total liabilities in
aggregate. Management is required to make judgement
and estimates in relation to tax risks when determining
the tax provision. The Group operates in a number of
tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of local and
international tax legislation, judgements have to be made
by management on the tax treatment on transactions
in advance of the ultimate tax determination being
certain. Where the amount of tax payable or recoverable
is uncertain, the Group estimates provision based on
management’s judgement of the probable amount of the
liability, or expected amounts recoverable, which may be
materially different from the estimated provision.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 10 and 26 to
the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved our tax specialists to review the tax
provision of the Group. We assessed management’s
judgements in respect of estimates of tax exposures by
considering the associated fact pattern and the Group’s
correspondence with relevant tax authorities and recent
developments in the tax jurisdictions which may have an
impact on existing tax exposures.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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100

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

28 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

i‘_“f_/;\ =A%
fmOo18me
Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —E— \F=H=+—HIFFZF

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —FT—+tF
Notes M7t HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 Fi&T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS & & & £ 75
REVENUE Uz 5 1,164,873 1,830,267
Cost of sales $H & X 2K (982,252) (1,500,431)
Gross profit & | 182,621 329,836
Other income and gains, net E b Uz A & Y25 5 58 5 29,167 12,192
Distribution and selling expenses 7 $8 & 5% f & (26,084) (53,573)
Administrative expenses 77 H 5 5% (120,819) (128,339)
Finance costs &l & A 4% 6 9) 4)
Share of losses of associates F& {k B 4 A & &5 18 (11,628) (1,196)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i &t & 2 7] 2 Wik 30 174,381 4,167
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REFBEEEES 2B F 7 227,629 163,083
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEFi %,/ (B X) 10 25,634 (14,631)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REFBEEEERZF N @A 253,263 148,452
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B & I & %75
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation
REBRIEEEXEB2FREHN, (E1EB) 11 2,165 (17,099)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % A i ) 255,428 131,353
Attributable to: 71| & 18 fE{f
Equity holders of the Company AN ‘A Bl A A 257,260 132,556
Non-controlling interests 3F#2 A% # 25 (1,832) (1,203)
255,428 131,353
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
moBmE
Year ended 31 March 2018 # 2 —ZE— /1F=H=+—HIFFZ

2018 2017
—Z2-N\F e
Notes ffzF HK$’000 F&7t HK$'000 F/& T

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

RATERTEB AELEEREAR 12
Basic F A&
— For profit for the year — 4 A % Fl| HK36.82 centsi&fll HK19.05 cents/&{ll

— For profit from continuing operations

—REKECEER 2R HK36.51 centsiEfll HK21.51 centsi# Il
Diluted #%
— For profit for the year — 4 A % 7 HK36.66 centsi#fli HK18.94 cents/ 1l

— For profit from continuing operations
—REFELEEE 2 5N HK36.36 centsi#1ll HK21.38 centsi#ll
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

NS e

Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —E— \F=H=+—HIFFZF

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—LF
Notes Fif #% HK$'000 T#& 7t  HK$000 47T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % A4 7l 255,428 131,353
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Hth2mEke= (%)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HeEFoBEBaR s EM2EKRE (AX) :
Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve:
At HERE B ARG
Changes in fair value 2 {8 & 19 82 41
Reclassification adjustments for
gains on disposal included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
HAGE BRI ERG 2 END EAE (540) =
(458) 41
Exchange differences: [& 5 =8 :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BREGIMEE X 2 EH 5 25,820 (25,475)
Reclassification adjustment for
a foreign operation disposed of during the year
FAHEHBIMEEEB 2 EMHHRE 30 (22,441) 7,279
3,379 (18,196)
Net other comprehensive income/(expense) to
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
HesEFmoBEBaRk s EM2EKRE (AX)/F8E 2,921 (18,155)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SR e

Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F— /\F=H=+—HIFFE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—LF
Notes ffzF HK$’000 F&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Other comprehensive income/(expense) not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HergsmofzEaRc EmeEksE (FAX) -

Asset revaluation reserve: & & & {f F4 18 :

Gain on revaluation of buildings & &£ F 2 U 25 14 4,567 17,313
Income tax effect FT 1S i 5 & 26 - (4,328)
4,567 12,985

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
HertesfoBsBaRk M2 EKEFE 4,567 12,985

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
FOR THE YEAR
FEHEMEEmKES (FAX) 7,488 (5,170)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FEEHRTLEE 262,916 126,183

Attributable to: 71| 4% 78 1k :

Equity holders of the Company 7N A B HE 25 A A 264,748 127,386
Non-controlling interests FE1% I AE 25 (1,832) (1,203)
262,916 126,183
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fn e RN %

31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes Mf HK$000 &t  HK$'000 FA&7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3Ei#i &) & &
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « = N & & 14 278,740 338,037
Prepaid land lease payments T8 + i 70 & kI8 15 91,048 51,587
Investment properties & & ¥ % 16 197,718 136,484
Deposits & & 17 - 3,916
Investments in associates B 4 A 718 & 18 45,930 57,558
Investments in club memberships & FT& f#£1% & 858 870
Available-for-sale investments 7] f H & 1% & 19 - 530
Total non-current assets £ B) & = 858 614,294 588,982
CURRENT ASSETS 8 & &
Inventories F & 20 169,945 158,673
Accounts and bills receivable JE UK BRIE 2 =& 21 95,886 141,459
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TERTRIE - e RH th Y ER IR 13,437 8,410
Due from an associate [ Y& B <& A 7] 238 18 31,633 11,116
Tax recoverable A] Ug [@ % 18 1,336 207
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & & Z FIR €18 B 22 804,292 775,816
1,116,529 1,095,681
Assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale
HEEBDEARELEZEE 11 - 56,524
Total current assets it 8) & = 42 58 1,116,529 1,152,205
CURRENT LIABILITIES = #) & &
Accounts and bills payable &t BE 18 K Z & 23 132,959 148,822
Accrued liabilities and other payables
EEtBERHMENRIE 165,304 192,067
Tax payable F& {718 165,320 197,684
Derivative financial instruments 74 € gt T & 24 927 =
464,510 538,573
Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified
as held for sale
HOMARIHEEEEEERAECERE 11 - 17,542
Total current liabilities 7t ) & {5 4258 464,510 556,115
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RO ISR T

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—LF
Notes ffzF HK$’000 F&7t HK$'000 F/& T

NET CURRENT ASSETS i 8 & E % E 652,019 596,090

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
BERLRBRATDAEEG 1,266,313 1,185,072

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3E &) & f&

Deposit received & W i% & 1,348 =
Deferred tax liabilities & L7 18 & & 26 23,711 19,877
Total non-current liabilities FE/7 ) B E 4258 25,059 19,877
Net assets & E /F18 1,241,254 1,165,195

EQUITY #z
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
RATEREE ARGER

Issued share capital & 277 % 2 27 69,350 69,969
Reserves # & 29 1,151,524 1,075,588
1,220,874 1,145,557
Non-controlling interests FF3% & 4 %5 20,380 19,638
Total equity #& z= 42 58 1,241,254 1,165,195
Chan Ho-man, Daniel & X Wong Hei-chiu EEi#
Director& % Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOIRSEE%

Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —E— \F=H=+—HIFFZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARNAIRHEFE ARG
Available-
for-sale
Issued Share Capital Share  Exchange Asset  investment Non-
share  premium redemption option  fluctuation revaluation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Al E
BR#1T R 17 A BRE X BE RESH FER
R HER BEOEE #f KDEE EHEE f#h  REER Bt Bn BReH
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
FTHT THET THER TER FTHT THI TER TET FTHT THER TER
At 1 April 2016 R=Z—~EMA—H 69,584 113,001 4,966 7,769 54,638 30,237 417 851,483 1,132,095 22,324 1,154,419
Profit for the year 4 /3 7l = o - - - - - 132,556 132,556 (1,203) 131,353
Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments
AHNEREZ A TEEZY - - - - - - 41 - 4 - 4
Exchange differences related to
foreign operations
BB EB B ESZE - - - - (18,19%) - - - (18,19) - (18,19)
Changes in fair value of building
recognised directly in equity,
net of tax
EEREERAZBTIATEZD
MERHE - - - - - 12,985 - - 12,985 - 12,985
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FE2ENG/(BX)88 - - - - (18,196) 12,985 4 132,556 127,386 (1,203) 126,183
Issue of shares (note 27)
BT (Kiske7) 726 11,993 = (1,717) = = = = 11,002 = 11,002
Shares repurchased (note 27)
BRI (Kisk27) (341) (5,935) 341 = = = = (341) (6,276) = (6,276)
Final 2016 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERREFZZE—AFERGRE
(BFEE13) - - - - - - - (36,072) (36,072 - (36,072)
Special 2016 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERMERNZ ZE-REERFIRE
CiEak) - - - - - - - (,747)  (27,747) - (27,747)
Interim 2017 dividend paid (note 13)
BERN=Z—tFETHRE
(BiEE13) - - - - - - - (29,375)  (29,375) - (29,375)
Special 2017 dividend paid (note 13)
BRNZE-tEERAIRE
(Bik13) - - - - - - - (26578)  (26,578) - (26,578
Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders
EEFEENIIE - - - - - - - - - (1,483) (1,483)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
(note 28)
RN REEEARND X[ 2 FE
(Pt +28) - - - 1,122 - - - - 1,122 - 1,122
As 31 March 2017
RZZE—+$=A=+-A 69,969  119,059* 5,307* 7174* 36,442* 43,222* 458" 863,926 1,145,557 19,638 1,165,195
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ROIEREEE

Year ended 31 March 2018 &t —ZE— \F=H=+—HIFF/ZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADRBEERHEAES
Available-
for-sale
Issued Share Capital Share Exchange Asset investment Non-
share  premium redemption option fluctuation revaluation revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
e
BR1T ) BRA BRE B BE REEHR FER

kA EEE WORE W EBREE  BHEE W REEAN A% Bx REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TExn Tz TEx TEx TEx TEx FTEx FEx FEx FEx  TEx

At 1 April 2017
RZZ—+FMWA—-H 69,969  119,059* 5,307* 7,174* 36,442* 43,222¢ 458 863,926 1,145,557 19,638 1,165,195

Profit for the year 4 /3 F| - - - - - -
Available-for-sale investment

revaluation reserve arising

from changes in fair value and

reclassification adjustments for

gains on disposal

ATEHEHRHERS 2 EHNHHA

AEELZAHNEREEREE - - - = = = (458)
Exchange differences related to

foreign operations

HEMNCERBERZERZR - - - - 3,379 - - - 3,379 - 3,379
Changes in fair value of building

recognised directly in equity,

net of tax

ERERERERAZETIATEED:

MR BIE - - - - - 4,567 - - 4,567 - 4,567

257,260 257,260 (1,832) 255428

(458)

(458)

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year

TEEEKRS/ (FX) 88 - - - - 3,379 4,567 (458) 257,260 264,748 (1,832) 262,916
Issue of shares (note 27)

BITRRA (Hizer) 208 3,462 - (711) - - - - 2,959 - 2,959
Shares repurchased (note 27)

BRERHD (MaE27) (827)  (17,739) 827 - - - - (827)  (18,566) - (18,566)
Loans from nom controllmg interests

FERER - - - - - - - - - 3,822 3,822
Final 2017 deend declared and

paid (note 13)

BERRENZ-E—tFERGRE

(Bi#E13) - - - - - - - (38,434)  (38,434) - (38,434)
Special 2017 dividend declared and

paid (note 13)

BEREEN 22— tEERIRE

(KiE13) - - - - - - - (31,446)  (31,446) - (31,446)

Interim 2018 dividend paid (note 13)

BERN - \FETHRE

(Fit5E13) - - - - - - - (26562  (26,562) - (26,562)
Special 2018 dividend paid (note 13)

BRN - \FEREIRE

(Bf3E13) - - - - - - - (18,287)  (18,287) - (78,287)
Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders [aFE#2 AR AR R IR 1+ 1% B - - - - - - - - - (1,248) (1,248)

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 28)
BRNEREE RO N 2508
(HizE28) - - - 905 - - - - 905 - 905

At 31 March 2018
R-Z2-N\E=A=1+-H 69,350 104,782* 6,134* 7,368* 39,821* 47,789* -* 945,630 1,220,874 20,380 1,241,254

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREEERSEAYBRARZEEHEE
HK$1,151,524,000 (2017: HK$1,075,588,000) in the consolidated 1,151,524,000/8 7T ( =& —+ 4 : 1,075,588,000
statement of financial position. HBIT) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HOIREMER

Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F— /1 F=H=+—HIFFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes Fif #% HK$'000 T#& 7t  HK$000 47T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
KEFH HRERE
Profit before tax Bk & Bl i F
From continuing operations & [ 1 & 48 & ¥ 7% 227,629 163,083
From discontinued operation 3 B 2 48 || 8 & ¥ 75 2,165 (17,099)
Adjustments for: 4% 37 %& :
Finance costs &t & ik K 6 9 4
Depreciation #T& 14 37,888 55,255
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
TR LA E KE 15 1,758 2,325
Write-off of provision for inventories #fl $8 75 & # & 7 (6,186) (11,724)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net
HEWE BERREBEBEBE, (W) FE 7 1,714 (1,308)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M E R 7 2 Uz 30 (176,663) (4,167)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
HERMHEERE 2 s 7 (540) -
Amortisation of a club membership & AT & £& # £ 7 12 17
Fair value losses/(gains) on revaluation of investment
properties EHEEEWMEZ ATFEEE, (W) 16 (5,449) 1,703
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
ME - BERRERE 14 9,221 1,609
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment
WIEY R BELREEE 14 765 600
Interest income F B Uz A (15,562) (9,351)
Dividend income & 8 4 A 7 (20) (20)
Equity-settled share option expense
NS E 2 BIRERX 7 905 1,122
Share of losses of associates FE {5 Bt & A 7] E 18 11,628 1,196
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes & R & &) » 2 & 4,180 (1,895)
93,454 181,350
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 77 & 4>, (1&41) (5,086) 86,899
Decrease in accounts and bills receivable
FEWBRTE KR RIBR 45,122 23,443
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TERFRIE R & & A b FE U BRTEIE N (4,382) (5,182)
Decrease in accounts and bills payable
FEBRIE R IR R (16,327) (77,528)
Decrease in accrued liabilities and other payables
FEGT B 1B I H th JE < BRTE R 4 (61,866) (32,422)
Increase in deposit received
B IR S M 1,348 -
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial liabilities
TTEFBaEG M, CRd) 927 (519)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2018 &% —

mOIREMER

E-NF=ZH=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 T#& 7t  HK$000 47T
Cash generated from operations #& & FT15 38 & 53,190 176,041
Interest received & Y Fl & 15,562 9,351
Interest paid 2 i F & 9) (4)
Hong Kong profits tax paid 214 & & F 5 & (1,681) (532)
Overseas taxes refunded/(paid) 24k E (B fF) HINFLIB (4,496) 689
Dividends paid B & & (174,729) (119,772)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
KEEHRE (R ZREREFE (112,163) 65,773
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
KREEZSH2HERE
Dividend received B2 A% & 20 20
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
BEWE BEAREEAB (25,942) (34,130)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment
HEME WEREZHEIEEB MSRIE 2,897 2,447
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments
HENHEEREMSHIE 612 =
Disposal of subsidiaries i &M B A 190,964 89,578
Capital contribution to an associate ﬁﬂf E/NETDE - (30)
Increase in an amount due from an associate
JE Wi Bt i N B SR IESE AN (20,517) (11,116)
Increase in time deposits with original maturity
of over three months when acquired
RERRESSA S =@A 2% B\FRE N (113,215) (111,637)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
BEFRBRE (R Z2HEEREFHE 34,819 (64,868)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIREMER

Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F— /1 F=H=+—HIFFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F T tF
Notes ffzF HK$’000 F&7t HK$'000 F/& T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

METH HEERNE
Issue of shares 77 %5 27 2,959 11,002
Repurchase of shares i [ i% 15 27 (18,566) (6,276)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

A SE 4% AR 4 25 K 1+ AR 2. (1,248) (1,483)
Increase in loans from non-controlling interests

FEVE R M AR B S N 3,822 -

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
BMETBRE (AR ZBRSREFEHE (13,033) 3,243

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

RehERHLBEHEM ORd) FHE (90,377) 4,148
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

FYzH e RERNREIER 206,870 203,968
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

bEREE s BFE 1,210 (1,246)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FrRoBEMERIREIER 117,703 206,870

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

RekFERBER &SRO
Cash and bank balances IR & & R 17 4 82 22 81,353 101,923
Time deposits with original maturity of less than

three months when acquired

RUWERRE DR =18 APz EHBEFER 22 36,350 101,689
Cash and cash equivalents attributable to

disposal groups classified as held for sale

HESEREDBAKIEHEZREREREELER 11 - 3,258

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
FEeHanERIITZHEELEFERREER 117,703 206,870

112 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited



Notes to Financial Statements

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture
and trading of footwear and property investment.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
detailed in note 39 to the financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties,
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.
Disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of
their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as
further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

EEEZSEBEEAERAR AR B RETM
MY 2BRAG ARl zEMiltER
fiZ A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

FR AEBREVEREESHEARYE
WE - KRB TEMB AT ZEBHNI
WM EE39 ©

HEFBRRERBEBERIAMASRM
FEMBRELEL ([FEMHREER]
HEEMEEAYBHREER FEEE
Al (EFEGTER]) h2) BELBERX
Mz BT RAIARBB R ARG Z WERE
B MIEMRIIRBE LKA EMARE -
HEREYE AHLERERTESRTA
AR A AR 8 o AN 2.4 — Pt -
FEH & HESEARREER R FERH
ERAZBIEE SR - W F M B MR AT
(BT 2% BRRBEREIN FIEFRE
EOEAAESEIZ T
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS
12 included in Annual Entities: Clarification of

Improvements to HKFRSs  the Scope of HKFRS 12
2014-2016 Cycle

Disclosure of Interests in Other

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKFRS 12, the adoption of the above
revised standards has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.

The nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply
to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate, or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or included in a
disposal group classified as held for sale. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group’s financial statements as
the Group’s subsidiaries classified as disposal groups held
for sale are wholly-owned subsidiaries and so no additional
information is required to be disclosed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’

Leases?
Insurance Contracts®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs?

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

AEBEYARRULEFRHHRETEAUTER
1B 1 R A R R IR R IERT BB IR

g -

BEMBREER
FARZEF]

ERM B IEEA
FAR 2 BF]

EAEVISRE LR
Efeli
EAEVISHREER
FOR 2 1EET
BBV ELER
F10RRES
BRI E 285
(ZZ2——%F)
ZABET
BAEVIERELER
155
BEEVISHRE LR
F155% 2 & 7]

EAEVISHREER
E165%
BBV ELER
F17%%
A G ER
F19H 2 (BT
A g ER
285 2 (EET
HA g ER
4058 2 (BFT

UROXNZ K52

PR E

BEREB B HEER
FoRz M T AR
R HFHEER
FATRBEAT

LA TA

IERES IR E 157

REZEHERABE L A5
A ELEZ R
BELETE

KEEFEA#ZMA

BB IR ERE 155
KEEFEEHZHA
ZBE

Vi od

RER & 4P

FrENEET - BB B4 B

BELAREEPEZ

RA#E@?
BEREYE

B (BBERBRE S EIFRER

REZBE®)-

AEE225

7/l

BREZEE)-
2235
—E—FER

B E

B (BRM B RE AW EE LT HEE M

BB B HREERF 1S

“E-NFEY REEEIERAE28T

ZFEH
—E—AHFF

ZEET
CHEZ:F-v: 0 s

—E—+FHEY  EAP

2 FR#E

FEEXREEERAA 117



Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5%

31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

118

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group will not restate
comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1
April 2018. During the year, the Group has performed an
assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The
Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
have a significant impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application
of the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application
guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group has
assessed the impact of this standard and expects that the
standard will not have a significant impact, when applied,
on its results of operations and financial position.
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HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates
to a class of property, plant and equipment to which
the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon
adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and which
transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed
in note 31(b) to the financial statements, at 31 March
2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately HK$4,035,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS
16, certain amounts included therein may need to be
recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to
be recognised, including, but not limited to, any amounts
relating to leases of low-value assets and short term leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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Notes to Financial Statements

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of other aforementioned new and revised
HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have any significant impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land under

Not depreciated

Over the lease term
finance leases

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms
and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, equipment 10% to 25%

and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred
in connection with the construction of property, plant
and equipment less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investments in club memberships

The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the club memberships may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for club
memberships with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such club memberships are not
amortised. The useful life of a club membership with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is dealt with as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve.
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Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal
groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in expenses.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity investments. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as dividend income and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of
profit or loss.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills
payable, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continueq)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, e.g.,
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.
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Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current
or separated into current and non-current portions based
on an assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the
underlying contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as
an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, the derivative is classified
as non-current (or separated into current and non-
current portions) consistently with the classification of
the underlying item.

° Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying
hedged item. The derivative instruments are separated
into current portions and non-current portions only if a
reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

S (&)

AR ERERME  BINHBARIZEIR
emENNESRENR ERERKE
BT BINBRARRBEFEAEE ZK
FUHRERENAFRAZINEFIERBE
RBIT°

W 35 R

Wgs MRS B S A] BE RS A8 M a8 K iz M e
RERl SE At IR T O BB

(@ HEERMABKRENAEREZBAE
ﬁlﬁtﬂﬁ&@#&EL 7T E G RER
fR-HEASERHREEMEHBREZ
BEMPLABEZEER THEEE

on £ 78 () 7 R iz il

N

(o) FHESWARERLOFHRIZREFR L AIA
£

(© MEBWAAELRN RAIZ AL
R BERNXTEEmTARAFHA
HEFEHRE (WER) M fEFERERR 2
WAL REMBEERMFEL
AR

@) BBWARBRESKRZ EFEL
SN

FEEXREEERAA 149



Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5%

31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

150

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details of
which are given in note 28 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Vietnam, Cambodia and Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.
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Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

The estimation of the inventory provision requires significant
management judgement, which includes judgement about
the recoverability of the cost of inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials. Further details are
included in note 20 to the financial statements.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group provides for impairment of accounts receivable
based on an assessment of the recoverability of accounts
receivable. Allowances are applied to accounts and bills
receivable where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
the differences will have an impact on the carrying value of
the receivables and doubtful debt expenses/write-back in
the period in which the estimate has been changed. Further
details are included in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued) TRERZ &5 (&)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties REYFE R FERG

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an NHERNSEZRBESEERME AR T -
active market for properties in the same location and EERUEEREMENNYE EERET
condition and subject to similar lease and other contracts. SHREER - SEZSERBRAT A&
In the absence of such information, the Group considers BEZRARRIRHER KEMENATE
information from a variety of sources. The valuation of the HESEEBETMRE flnEEESE
investment properties at fair value was highly dependent 1% HeERE MGREE MHEBERE
on estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to KR PBEEEE MR

the rental value, rental growth rate, market yield, market
knowledge and historical transactions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair E—THEBE (BEAFEFENBZEER
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying RBRELSMRIEEYEZEREAE)HN
amount of investment properties, are given in note 16 to the B 5 IR R T 5E16 o

financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of local and
international tax legislation, judgements have to be made
by management on the tax treatment on transactions
in advance of the ultimate tax determination being
certain. Where the amount of tax payable or recoverable
is uncertain, the Group estimates provision based on
management’s judgement of the probable amount of the
liability, or expected amounts recoverable, which may be
materially different from the estimated provision. Further
details are included in note 10 to the financial statements.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their business activities and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) manufacturing and sale of footwear products; and

(b)  property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations except that interest income,
finance costs and other unallocated income and gains/
(losses), net and unallocated expenses are excluded from
the measurement.
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Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The following tables present revenue, results and certain
assets, liabilities and expenditure information for the
Group’s operating segments for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017.

Manufacturing and sale

DREETBRANKEE

™
i‘l“;
i
i
!

AR EEEET
PHABETERANERE RZFRET
AR EEEET

NREBRZHERBRI2ERE =TT
ERZEBRERZMEETRS -

TRENBE-_T-N\FR-_T—+tF=H
=t HUEFERAEELE DB E ¥
BRETEE BEMAXER-

of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
AERHEREER NERE Ra
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\§ —T—+F ZB-NF —T-—+F ZB-NF C"T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHT TER TET TER THT
Segment revenue 7 5f i 3
Sales to external customers
HETHRER 1,164,873 1,830,267 - - 1,164,873 1,830,267
Intersegment sales 7 28§ & - 1,451 - - - 1,451
1,164,873 1,831,718 - - 1,164,873 1,831,718
Elimination of intersegment sales
HEHHHEEE - (1,451)
Revenue from continuing operations
RERBELEXBNRR 1,164,873 1,830,267
Rental income & WA - = 10,539 8,608 10,539 8,608
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Manufacturing and sale

of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
HERHEEEER WERE )
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\Ff —E—+f5 ZB-NF "FE—+HF ZB-NF _"T+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT TER TET TERT TAT
Segment results 7 £ 4& 209,991 162,168 12,317 5,079 222,308 167,247
Unallocated income and

gains/(losses), net

KABBA KKz,

(B1B)F8 4,439 (1,283)
Interest income # 84 A 15,562 9,278
Unallocated expenses & 2 ELF & (14,671) (12,155)
Finance costs &4 A 2 (9) )
Profit before tax from

continuing operations

REFECEEBNBHATEN 227,629 163,083
Income tax credit/(expense)

FEBiEe/ (%) 25,634 (14,631)
Profit for the year from

continuing operations
KERBREXRBNER G 253,263 148,452
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Manufacturing and sale

of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
HERKEEEER MERE RE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f B+ ZB-NF "E—+HF ZB-N\F _"T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET THERT THET TER TET
Assets and liabilities BE K & &
Segment assets 5 204 & 717,148 717,469 197,718 136,484 914,866 853,953
Assets of disposal groups
classified as held for sale
PERBELELERBCEE - 51,236 - - - 51,236
Unallocated assets k2 Bl & & 815,957 830,710
Assets related to
discontinued operation
HERIIREXBRBCBE - 5,288
Total assets & E (& 1,730,823 1,741,187
Segment liabilities 2 % & & 294,270 335,316 1,878 892 296,148 336,208
Liabilities directly associated
with the assets classified
as held for sale
HOBARKELERE
EREBAE - 15,980 - - - 15,980
Unallocated liabilities 7 7 ¢ & f& 193,421 202,242
Liabilities related to
discontinued operation
HER I EEEBERCARE - 1,562
Total liabilities & {& %258 489,569 575,992
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Manufacturing and sale

of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
HERKEHEER MERE =Re
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-0\f —E—+tF ZEBE-N\F C—Z—t§ ZB-N§ C—FT—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET THERT THET TER TET
Other segment information
Hitn HEH
Depreciation: 17 :
Segment 2 & 35,432 51,450 - - 35,432 51,450
Um%mmdﬁ‘m 2,456 3,805
37,888 55,255
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments
BHBEM T HEHE 1,758 2,325 - - 1,758 2,325
Capital expenditure & AR 5 59,204 20,864 - = 59,204 20,864
Share of losses of associates
EhEECEER 11,628 1,196 - - 11,628 1,196
Impairment of property, plant
and equipment
WE BEREBRE 9,221 1,609 - - 9,221 1,609
Fair value losses/(gains) on
revaluation of
investment properties
ERRENEZATEER/
(Mias) - - (5,449) 1,708 (5,449) 1,703
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
HEM B AR 2 e (174,381) (4,167) - - (174,381) (4,167)
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Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) XEIZEFHKZ
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —EF—tF
HK$’000 Tt  HK$'000 T/87T
The United States of America £ |8 & & 171,265 382,199
Europe BUM 392,686 578,227
Asia 3z M 417,135 616,841
Others E A 183,787 253,000
1,164,873 1,830,267
The revenue information of continuing operations i B RIS ERIURE
above is based on the locations of the customers. FAE H A R I o
(b) Non-current assets b) FREBEE
2018 2017
AN —E—tF

HEER

HK$’000 ¥ & T

HK$'000 & 7T

Hong Kong & % 23,097 24,541
Mainland China Bl A i 250,875 228,033
Cambodia SR 1#H3E 100,814 109,663
Vietnam = 191,896 166,264
Others E A 824 1,523
567,506 530,024
The non-current assets information of continuing bt g A A A R e i A S B R

operations above is based on the locations of the BRI BEERMEAKE  BX
AARERMTI A SMEHE RO

ERERE -

assets and excludes financial instruments, club
memberships and investments in associates.
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Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue from continuing operations derived from the HE-Z—\FE_ZT—+tF=A=+—H
manufacturing and sale of footwear products business with FEFER - HASERBFELEEBNE
over 10% of the total revenue from continuing operations of WeHBiR10% s A EREEEBEMMEL
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 ZREFERLEEFOW ST
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—LtF

HK$’000 /&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Customer A BFA 391,980 467,716
Customer B & F B 253,829 584,265
Customer C &/~C 228,670 315,475
Customer D BFD 193,482 244,842
1,067,961 1,612,298
The above amounts include sales to a group of entities LS EEER—HERE (ZEFEEX L
which are known to be under common control with these BEREHEES) RHERE -
customers.
Revenue represents the aggregate of the net invoiced WM EERESITHNEMEEE M
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and BEFEEN YERBEEEANARAB IR
trade discounts, and after eliminations of intra-group o

transactions.
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An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net from REFELCEER 2 W A Rk
continuing operations is as follows: RN
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF

HK$’000 T# 3t  HKS$'000 T/ 7T

Revenue ¥ #
Sale of goods & & M 1,164,873 1,830,267

Other income and gains, net Eth Iy A & U3 F 58

Bank interest income 77 B A 14,865 7,944
Interest income from accounts receivable J& U BE I8 2 Fl| 2 4k A 697 1,334
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments

MEeBTI Az AFEEE (7,598) (530)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net

HEME BWEIZHBHEE 2 Ww/ (B18)F8E (1,714) 1,308
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments

HERMHEERE 2 s 540 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

W WE REERE (9,221) (1,609)
Impairment of other receivables £ i & U BR T8 Jg (B (61) (921)
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment

Y% - WE &R TE B s (765) (27)

Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation
of investment properties

EHEBREMEZ A TFERE (EE) 5,449 (1,7083)
Gross rental income FA & Ug A 4258 10,539 8,608
Foreign exchange differences, net [& ¥, %= %8 /% & 11,995 (6,487)
Dividend income A% 2 A 20 20
Others E 4,421 4,255

29,167 12,192
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An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is
as follows:

KAEFBREXBZREXADTANT :

2018
—EB-N\F

2017

—ET—+F

HK$’000 F&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Interest on bank loans 817 & 7 2 #] 8 9 4
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is REE R BB E TS 2 BRBADE ) TY
arrived at after charging/(crediting): nk (GFA)ATIER :
2018 2017
—B-N\E —EFLF

HK$’000 /&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Cost of inventories sold 8 & 17 & B A& 617,399 940,490
Depreciation #T & 37,888 55,148
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments # $5 78 1~ £ i#th 72 & 8 1,758 2,325
Write-back of provision for inventories* 17 & # & % [5] * (6,186) (11,724)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases

REEHNET ZREENER 2,268 2,353
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant

and equipment, net

HEME BERZEEEBE (W) FE 1,714 (1,308)
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment

W% - BB &R ETE B 765 27
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments

HERMHEERE 2 W (540) _
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 30)

S B A A 2 Yas (MFEE30) (174,381) (4,167)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ZtEh B & 2,130 2,069
Employee benefit expense

(including directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

BERAMAX (BFEEEMS (KM58) )

Wages and salaries T& Kk & & 314,867 455,162

Equity-settled share option expense Az 45 & 7 BRI F =2 905 1,122

Pension scheme contributions &Kk 4 5+ 2 £ & 32,497 51,195

348,269 507,479
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2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$’000 Fi&t  HK$'000 F/& T

Amortisation of a club membership** & Fff & £5 # §5** 12 17
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments

TEEMIAZ AT EEE 7,598 530
Fair value losses/(gains) on revaluation of investment properties

BHEREMEZAFEEE (W) (5,449) 1,703
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

W% WERRERE 9,221 1,609
Impairment of other receivables £ fib [ U B T8 &l (B 61 921
Bank interest income #R77 | B U8 A (14,865) (7,944)
Interest income from accounts receivable &Y BRIE 2 7| B U8 A (697) (1,334)
Foreign exchange differences, net [ 3, = 58 %8 (11,995) 6,487
Dividend income A% 8 4 A (20) (20)

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance)
arising from rental-earning investment properties

HMEES REMEMEEAZERLERY (BREEBRKRE) 3,670 1,826
Cost of sales includes HK$276,468,000 (2017: HEXABRENEZE TR ARBIER
HK$417,637,000) relating to direct staff costs and e 3T & ££276,468,0008 L (—Z T —+F:
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also 417,637,000/ 7T ) - HINE B &R A E#
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for HERE s SERATA-

each of these types of expenses.

* Write-back of provision for inventories is included in “Cost of * GFEREREE AGEERRZ[HE
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. AR Ao

“*  Amortisation of a club membership is included in * EMERBHDAREERERZ TR
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of gD

profit or loss.
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Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

FA-BEEMESRRETRA FERQAME
B 5£383(1)(@) ~ (b) * (c) & (f)fek & <~ A] (#EE
ERZNEER) RO FoRpRENT

2018 2017
= —EFLF
HK$’000 /&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Fees 2 &

— Independent non-executive directors — &7 JEH 1TE = 576 558
— Non-executive directors —JEHITE = 912 876
1,488 1,434

Other emoluments: H fih B 4
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - 28 R E W F| 25 5,921 6,479
Discretionary bonuses B 24 7,418 2,460
Pension scheme contributions iE k& 5t £ &% 36 36
Equity-settled share option expense JAME # 45 & 2 B AR #E I % 468 456
13,843 9,431
15,331 10,865

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

RAFERRBEFERN ETESEAR
ARSI Z T RIEEH AR E 2 RF
BRTEBRE £ PFBER T BRERM
H28 - EFBHACRERRERZZERE
Bz AFERKOBEREE MEaRA
FEMBHRR 2BBUENALEETHEH

BEoAe
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(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FASZNTEIIFERTESZ2HEES N
during the year were as follows: I

Allowances Equity-settled

and benefits share option Total
Fees in kind expense remuneration

R NRREHEZ
2018 we BENF S FBRAER X Me@m
—E-N\§ HK$'000 Tt HK$000 F#Ex HK$000 FiEx HK$000 Tt
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny Z 52 [ % 4 192 32 34 258
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven X F/I &4 192 32 34 258
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel FREE 27+ 192 32 34 258
576 96 102 774

Equity-settled

share option Total
Fees expense remuneration
NEREHE 2
2017 ik B AR HE B 2 il & 48 58
—E—+F HK$'000 F&t  HK$'000 FAL  HK$'000 Fi&T
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 58 %% 1EF 5t 4 186 45 231
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven # 7T %t 4 186 45 231
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel ffE % 2z + 186 45 231
558 135 693
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAWBEMBENBULIERTESE 2
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZT—+F: &) -

(2017: Nil).
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(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERIHTES
Salaries,

allowances Pension Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions expense remuneration

He ZHR Bhe NEHEEZ
ik BNRE HE#ke FEER BRERX Wema
2018 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E2-0\% TAR TAL TEL TAR TEL TAR

Executive directors: #{TES :
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan,Helen

EARLT - 1,191 2,292 - 18 3,501
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1 &4 5% & = 1,726 1,192 = 64 2,982
Mr. Mumma, Adin David 5 K& %4 - 1,484 1,170 - 99 2,753
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =121 7% £ - 1,392 1,464 18 91 2,965

= 5,793 6,118 18 272 12,201

Non-executive directors: £#TES

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel BJ% X % 4 720 - 1,300 18 60 2,098
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

BxEEE REAEE AT@t 192 32 - - 34 258

912 32 1,300 18 94 2,356

912 5,825 7,418 36 366 14,557
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(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

(b) HITESRFHTES(F)

(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions expense  remuneration
Fe 2HR Bhe NEREEZ
ik BN K &% RN BRERX Mems
2017 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE—tf TAR T TAR TR THL TAT
Executive directors: H{TES:
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey *
REELE = 886 = = = 886
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen *
BAMRL - 1,116 292 - 7 1,485
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 17 X % 7% & = 1,901 624 - 77 2,602
Mr. Mumma, Adin David ** & A & % £ - 1,280 780 - - 2,060
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu & /&8 % & - 1,296 464 18 61 1,839
- 6,479 2,160 18 215 8,872
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel )% 35 & 690 = 300 18 61 1,069
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, JP
AxREL REMES ATHL 186 - - - 45 231
876 - 300 18 106 1,300
876 6,479 2,460 36 321 10,172

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, who was also the
chief executive of the Group, passed away on 14 April
2016.

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen was appointed the
chief executive of the Group on 29 June 2016.

>k

Mr. Mumma, Adin David was appointed as executive
director on 1 October 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2017:
Nil).
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The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2017: four) directors of the Company, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one highest paid
employee who is not a director are as follows:

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

FRAEGESHEEREARFANE (ZF
—tF OR)ER A FEHR LXMW
H8 - AFEHB - RIIEFIRAFESR
ZEFEWT

2018 2017
= —EFLF
HK$’000 /&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind ¥ & « 2288 & B ¥ 25

Discretionary bonus )& #&&

Equity-settled share option expense VA#E %5 45 & 7 B IR AE 5 2

798 491
1,399 595
74 61
2,271 1,147

The remuneration of the remaining one (2017: one) non-
director highest paid employee fell within the band of
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (2017: HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000).

During the year and in prior years, share options were
granted to a non-director highest paid employee in respect
of his services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 28 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

EHfp— % (ZTE—tF:—R)FEFZ
=¥ EEB 2B < A5 N 2,000,001
JL 22,500,000 T (ZFE—+EF: N TF
1,000,0017 7 21,500,000/ 7T ) ©

REARBEFE —2FEFZRFHE
EREMARERE M RFEXBEE
—THBERMBEHRR T8 WE - % FH
BEZAFERRBARERaRER X
REFH BHEE  MEsRAFENBHRR
ZHBAENALREZ 2R HER ZM

SRBEE DA -
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

BAFEHIBERF AR BRI HETE
EBEFIZ16.5% (Z T —+HF:16.5%) 2
TR B o Ho b [R5 M SR T s A 2 B IE
TIRAEBEEXBERR R AER 2

HEBIEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 T# 7t HK$000 TH&T
Current — Hong Kong B1EAR: 18 — &8
Charge for the year K & E Fi 18 & 357 847
Under/(over) provision in prior years
BEFERETR (BEEE) (20) 585
Current — Elsewhere B H3%; 18 — £ b 3 [&
Charge for the year 2 & & §{ TH &7 12,785 32,394
Overprovision in prior years 81 & £ B 58 & & (40,438) (18,914)
Deferred (note 26) I& i (Fft 5126) 1,682 (281)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year from continuing operations
REFBELSEEBNAFEEREIL  (H2) B8 (25,634) 14,631
Total tax position for the year from discontinued operation
REBRIEREEBNRNFEENREE - -
(25,634) 14,631
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BARARERISKHBARMERR, A
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/ ERER ZEEME T EEARBRT AR Z
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its MESXHERERHRFEZ2HBEIL
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the () 2 ERWOT

effective tax rate is as follows:

2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—tfF
HK$’000 /&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Profit before tax from continuing operations

KEFBEEERZBHBAE T 227,629 163,083
Profit before tax from discontinued operation
KB DK IEREFE 2 BT A& A 2,165 (17,099)
229,794 145,984
Tax at the applicable tax rates @A B X+ & 2 Hi1A 39,543 28,832
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years
BEFEHARA ZHE (40,458) (18,329)
Losses attributable to associates H & N &) fE (L &5 18 1,977 203
Income not subject to tax 78 =2 % U A (30,547) (268)
Expenses not deductible for tax N A] MF: 2 F &2 4,800 3,751
Tax losses not recognised 7 W R4 I8 &5 18 - 442
Tax losses utilised from prior years h Fl 1+ 4§ 3B 5548 (949) =

Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s effective rate
RASBEERMEFEZHEBESIL (K&) (25,634) 14,631

Tax charge/(credit) from continuing operations at the effective rate
REBBEFE REBBELEEB 2BEIL (ER) (25,634) 14,631

Tax position from discontinued operation at the effective rate

REGRREAE 2 REERIEREZHATE - -~

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to Nil BENREETHEAT (ZE—HF )X
(2017: Nil) is included in “Share of losses of associates” in RErEEER ([BEQRELER]) -

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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176

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rates of 15% to 20% (2017: 15% to 22%),
the Cambodia Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2017: 20%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 17% (2017: 17%), the
Corporate Income Tax rate in Mainland China of 25%
(2017: 25%) and the respective tax holidays granted to the
subsidiaries of the Group in Vietham and Cambodia.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

In addition, pursuant to Cambodian withholding tax
regulations, a 14% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group
is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Cambodia in respect of
earnings generated.
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Notes to Financial Statements

At 31 March 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China and
Cambodia. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed profit on Mainland
China and Cambodia subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$55,999,000 (2017: HK$48,826,000) at 31 March 2018.

The Group has estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$76,870,000 (2017: HK$82,662,000) arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
considered not probable that the Group can utilise these
losses in the foreseeable future.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

R-E—N\F=ZA=Z+—H8 VERLEER
FAHR B A R SR 28 AK S 2 BT B A ] FE 45 Ak
TEHH 2 REE B F| 2 AT BB MR IR T
MB-ZFERE ZEWBRRNARER
RRAGEDRBBEF -R_ZE—NF=A
=t+—HB RPEAEREE K EAR
ZABREEFIBEE Z KD KRG T 6
2 ER M EEE A F£4955,999,0008 T (= F
—-+4F : 48,826,000/ 7T ) °

REBBHARBEEEECRBEBENA
76,870,000/ 7T ( =& — £ 4 : 82,662,000
BIT) ZEEENERABEEERSESE
BZARIAEERBEN - BRZEWNE R
A —EHHSGEE BAEEEN R ERER
ZEBBZATREMETK M ES A BEEE
EREEIBEE -
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

178

(a)

Discontinued operation

On 29 August 2016, the Company announced the
decision of its board of directors to wind down,
discontinue or sell its retailing and wholesaling
business (the “Retailing and Wholesaling Business”).
The Group has decided to cease the Retailing and
Wholesaling Business because it plans to focus its
resources on its manufacturing and sale of footwear
products business. As at 31 March 2017, the Retailing
and Wholesaling Business was classified as a disposal
group held for sale and as a discontinued operation.
With the Retailing and Wholesaling Business being
classified as a discontinued operation, the retailing
and wholesaling business is no longer included in the
note for operating segment information.

On 28 May 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose of its 100% equity interest of /&% BjanE
B ZE 5 AR A7, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, at a cash consideration of RMB2,962,000,
equivalent to HK$3,380,000. The disposal was
completed during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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(a)

Notes to Financial Statements

Discontinued operation (continued)

The results of the Retailing and Wholesaling Business
for the year ended 31 March 2018 are presented
below:

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

(a) EREKEXK (&)

BE_Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE
TERBPBER CEEEFNNT

2018 2017
—ZE2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 /&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Revenue Y& - 23,099
Cost of sales 4% kA - (9,056)
Gross profit & Fl] - 14,043
Other losses, net £ 1 E518 % 48 (32) (78)
Distribution and selling expenses 7 # & $5& 5 5% - (22,733)
Administrative expenses 77 5 5z (85) (8,331)
Loss before tax from discontinued operation

REERIEEEEE 2 RBIRIEER (117) (17,099)
Income tax expense FT 15 %i 5 = -
Loss for the year before gain on disposal of a subsidiary

AEZEE (TTHE—RHMNB QR KER) (117) (17,099)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 30(a))

& — BB A B e (FTEE30(a) ) 2,282 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation

REBERIEREEB 2 FERH, (B1B) 2,165 (17,099)
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

(a) Discontinued operation (continued) (a) BRIEKEXER(F)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the TERMEXRGHNEIREAERRER
Retailing and Wholesaling Business are as follows: Bl
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 /& T HK$'000 T 7T
Assets &&E
Accounts and bills receivable &k BRE & 2 & - 647
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
AR - ke R HE At EUARIA - 568
Cash and cash equivalents IR & & 5 R IR £ H B - 4,073
Assets classified as held for sale DB AFIELE 2 & E - 5,288

Liabilities B 1&

Accounts and bills payable F& {8218 & Z & - (464)
Accrued liabilities and other payables fE&H 8 & & E th fE [~ BR 18 - (1,098)

Liabilities directly associated with the
assets classified as held for sale
HOEARAHLEEEEEEABA AR - (1,562)

Net assets directly associated with the disposal group

EHESEERBEECEERE - 3,726
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(a)

Notes to Financial Statements

Discontinued operation (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the Retailing and
Wholesaling Business are as follows:

HK$’000 ¥ % T

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

ERILEEES (4)
TERHERBIASREFENT

2018 2017
—E-NE e
HK$’000 F5 7T

Operating activities 4% & /& B) (7,071) (4,525)
Investing activities % & /& 8) 5,520 2,243
Net cash outflow IR & it & /F 58 (1,551) (2,282)

Earnings/(loss) per share: &R & H|,/ (E#E)
Basic, from discontinued operation
EXR KREERIERERK
Diluted, from discontinued operation

BE RECRIEREXED

HKO.31 centsi&fll  HK(2.46) cents/& Il

HK0.31 centsi&{ll  HK(2.46) cents/ 1Ll

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts from discontinued operation presented
for the year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of a
dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share
amounts presented.

WTEpHE—_E—+tF=A=1+—H
IEFEERNRABRIELEELZ
ERARSESHELESAE  RA
REARITEERESMEROTRE
AEEcHEAEREBELE -

FEEXREEERAA 181



Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5%

31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

(a)

Discontinued operation (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share from discontinued operation are based on:

(@

HK$’000 ¥ % T

BRIEBERK (F)
KECDRIEREXRB 2 BRERESE
SBRAN,(BR) HRATHE:

2018
—E-N\F

2017
e
HK$’000 F5 7T

Profit/(loss) 2%~ (&i#&)

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent from discontinued operation
REERIEEEEB 2B AR EBERFEAABLAT

(E18) 2,165 (17,099)
Number of shares
R&EE
2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—tF
Shares I 12
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic earnings per share calculation
(note 12)
A EERERBANRENZNFERNEITZ
Tm AR N RE T 8 (KiFE12) 698,709,631 695,673,705
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the diluted earnings per share calculation (note 12)
MR EEREERT AE /2 LB INETHE (MEE12) 701,663,133 699,920,106

Details of the disposal of the Retailing and
Wholesaling Business were disclosed in note 30(a) to
the financial statements.
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(b)

Notes to Financial Statements

Disposal group held for sale

On 28 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, Talent Union (Hong Kong) Investments Limited
(the “Purchaser”), to dispose of 100% equity interest
of Kingmaker Footwear (Zhong Shan) Co., Ltd.
(“Kingmaker Zhong Shan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group which held the site and manufacturing
facilities in Zhongshan, at a cash consideration of
RMB168,000,000, equivalent to HK$187,584,000.

As at 31 March 2017, the disposal of Kingmaker
Zhong Shan was not completed and subject to the
fulfilment of condition precedent. Kingmaker Zhong
Shan was classified as a disposal group held for sale
as at 31 March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, condition
precedent was fulfilled and the disposal of Kingmaker
Zhong Shan was completed.

(b)

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

FEHELERE

RZB—RE+ZA=-+/N\B K&£H
MBI E=HESE (HE)RER
RARI([EFDEIZBEEHZ il
EERILFEHEREERBHARSE
ExEMBARIBE&E (F L) AR
AR (MNEZEAF L) 225 E BHe
R1E A& AR #168,000,0007T ' HHE ®
#9187,584,000/% T °

RZE—+tF=A=+—H IEE+
Wz i & 36 R SE AR S 2R 5 S R MGk 1 2
Ko lE2F IR =_T—+F=A=+—
BABEARELELERE-

BE_Z-\F=A=+—HILFE"
FORGHEEER  IREFILZHER
STRK
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

(b) Disposal group held for sale (continued) b) BHELHELESEE(£)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of JIg 2 #1770 _t¢:Hj+—E|
Kingmaker Zhong Shan classified as held for sale as Aﬁﬁ%f@ﬁ%ﬁﬁixﬁﬁﬁgf
at 31 March 2017 are as follows: A0

HK$'000 T 7T

Assets BE

Property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 - = N 3% & 43,441
Prepaid land lease payments T8 + i 0 & kI8 7,440
Cash and cash equivalents IR & & % [7 38 4 18 B 355

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
SERBELELEEB CEE 51,236

Liabilities B &
Accrued liabilities and other payables fE&t 8 & & E fth fE 5 BR 18 (6,998)
Tax payable F&1 %18 (8,982)

Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale

HEOEARIFHEEEERBBCAE (15,980)

Net assets directly associated with the disposal group

HEEEEEREMcEEFE 35,256
Details of the disposal of Kingmaker Zhong Shan were HEEEHR LZFRERERNG
disclosed in note 30(b) to the financial statements. 30(b) °
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Notes to Financial Statements

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$257,260,000 (2017:
HK$132,556,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 698,709,631 (2017: 695,673,705) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$257,260,000 (2017:
HK$132,556,000) and 701,663,133 (2017: 699,920,106)
ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, adjusted for the
effects of the potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

BREARFSEDBRBERAAREEIFTEA
Ji& 1 4F JZ 3% 257,260,000 T (= F —
% : 132,556,000/ 7T ) R F A E 817 E WAk
hn4E 15 #698,709,6310% ( — T — 4
695,673,705/% ) 5+ & o

BREERTNESBIRBERARAERIFEEA
FE 165 4F [ ) #1257,260,000/8 70 (=& —+
£ 132,556,000 7T ) M A&FAE BE1TET
HELTRR T EBELRABEE CFANE B
77 % AR hn#E 15 #701,663,133k% (=&
—-+t 4 :699,920,106/% ) 5+ & °

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 F/&7t HK$000 F/& T

Earnings & ¥/
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company:
RARERIFEABRESETR (BE) :

From continuing operations 7 [ 1 45 48 & % 7% 255,095 149,655
From discontinued operation 38 B B % |k 4 & % 7% 2,165 (17,099)
257,260 132,556
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

Number of shares

&g 2 q=
2018
—B-N\F

2017
—E—+F

Shares % 17

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating the basic earnings per share
R BEERERBNNSBE N 2 ERRMETFHH

Weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on
deemed exercise of all dilutive options in issue during the year
FARERITEE M BT EBREMBRREEETLZ
T m AR A T B

698,709,631

2,953,502

695,673,705

4,246,401

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating the diluted earnings per share

At EEREERN S A B 2 ERBINE I H

701,663,133

699,920,106
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31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Dividends paid during the year % A & J& - A% &
Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2017 — HK5.5 cents per ordinary share
(2017: final dividend of HK5.2 cents per ordinary share,
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2016)
HREE_T—+F=A=+T—HUEMBRFEHRARE
—BREBKRSSBIN(ZE—t+F - RBEE_T—RF
ZA=ZT—BHIEMBFE  REKREEKRE RAARS.2B1) 38,434 36,072
Special in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2017 — HK4.5 cents per ordinary share
(2017: special dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share,
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2016)
MBE_ZE—+F=A=T—HILHBRFENFRE
—BREBRISBN(ZE—tF - REBE_ZT—RF

ZA=+—HIEMBFE FHREGREBRSOEN) 31,446 27,747
Interim — HK3.8 cents (2017: HK4.2 cents) per ordinary share
FEIRE—EREBEKRISBIM (ZF—LF:4.2/8) 26,562 29,375
Special - HK11.2 cents (2017: HKB3.8 cents) per ordinary share
FRIRE—EREBRI1.28L (ZF—+5:3.8%81l) 78,287 26,578
174,729 119,772

Proposed final dividend ## & 7 2 i% &

HK2.2 cents (2017: HK5.5 cents) per ordinary share

B ERA2.2BM (=T —tF:5.581) 15,257 38,483
Proposed special dividend ##/& 45 Bl i% 2.

HK12.8 cents (2017: HK4.5 cents) per ordinary share

BRERR12.88I (ZF—tF :4.5%1l) 88,768 31,486

104,025 69,969

The proposed final dividend and the proposed special RF SR R B AR B S IR 4 R AR B B A AR

dividend for the year are subject to the approval of the NERRARBIGRIT2REAFE RS EHE

Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general % F A VEE o 2 E S R 0 A IR A
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the &2 e

dividends payable.
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

188

Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
W KA
=G HEYE
THREF EEIR EBRAE CE
31 March 2018 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—g2-\F=A=+-H T#R THR Ti#R T#R
Cost: B AN :
At beginning of year 7 & 7] 377,838 54,919 377,774 810,531
Additions A E 124 1,005 22,991 24,120
Disposals {!% - - (35,620) (35,620)
Write-off i - - (2,876) (2,876)
Transfers 5% 44,457 (44,457) - -
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)

BAKEME (K16) (64,623) - - (64,623)
Exchange realignment 9 5% 10,486 339 12,411 23,236
At 31 March 2018

RZZE-N\F=H=+—H 368,282 11,806 374,680 754,768
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31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
e KA
RiE HEWE
THREF EEIR RER/E &t
31 March 2018 (continued) HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
“E-N\F=ZA=t+—-H (£) TET THET TET TET
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
R E RRE -
At beginning of year 7 & 7] 177,361 - 295,133 472,494
Depreciation provided during the year

FRRTE 16,604 - 21,284 37,888
Impairment provided during the year

FREFHRAE 9,221 - - 9,221
Disposals & - - (31,009) (31,009)
Write-off #U8 - - (2,111) (2,111)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)

HAREYE (KE16) (29,796) - - (29,796)
Exchange realignment 9 5% 8,318 - 11,023 19,341
At 31 March 2018

RZZE-\F=H=1t—H 181,708 - 294,320 476,028

Net book value: B& I /F & :
At 31 March 2018
RZE-\F=H=1+—H 186,574 11,806 80,360 278,740
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

Machinery,

furniture,

equipment,

leasehold

improvements

Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total

s KA

BE HEME

T REF FREIR FKERAE A&t
31 March 2017 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
—EZ—+%=A=+—H FHBT TET TET FET
Cost: AUA :
At beginning of year 1A & 4] 583,846 58,187 502,800 1,144,833
Additions R E 2,163 10,742 7,959 20,864
Disposals i} & = - (74,659) (74,659)
Write-off #i0A - - (7,520) (7,520)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30)

HEMB AR (H:E30) (66,934) - (30,015) (96,949)
Transfers 13,811 (13,811) - -
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)

BAREME (EE16) (17,387) - - (17,387)
Assets included in a disposal group

classified as held for sale (note 11)

AATEARELECLESREE

(311) (114,286) = (3,927) (118,213)
Exchange realignment 9 5% (23,375) (199) (16,864) (40,438)
At 31 March 2017

RZEBE—+F=A=+—H 377,838 54,919 377,774 810,531

190 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited



Notes to Financial Statements
B} 5 ¥R 2R Bif 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

Machinery,

furniture,

equipment,

leasehold

improvements

Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total

e KA

R HEME

T REF EEIR FERAE &t
31 March 2017 (continued) HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+F=A=1+—R0 (&) THBT TET TET THBT
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
R E RRE -
At beginning of year 7% 7] 252,704 - 368,537 621,241
Depreciation provided during the year
FRFRITE 25,048 - 30,207 55,255
Impairment provided during the year
FAGHRRE - - 1,609 1,609
Disposals i % - - (73,520) (73,520)
Write-off #UR - - (6,920) (6,920)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30)
HEMB AR (H3E30) (4,283) = (6,434) (10,717)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)
HAREYE (ME16) (12,295) = = (12,295)
Assets included in a disposal group
classified as held for sale (note 11)
AASEARELECLESREE
GESRD) (70,845) = (3,927) (74,772)
Exchange realignment 9 53 & (12,968) - (14,419) (27,387)
At 31 March 2017
RZZE—+tF=A=+—H 177,361 - 295,133 472,494
Net book value: B& E/F (& :
At 31 March 2017
RZE—+F=A=+—H 200,477 54,919 82,641 338,037
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

192

During the year ended 31 March 2018, certain
buildings with carrying amounts of HK$436,000 (2017:
HK$5,092,000) were transferred to investment properties
at fair value of HK$5,003,000 (2017: HK$22,405,000)
based on valuation by Castores Magi (Hong Kong)
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers.
Accordingly, a gain on revaluation of HK$4,567,000 (2017:
HK$17,313,000) was recorded in the asset revaluation
reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, a building
with carrying amount of HK$43,612,000 (2017: Nil)
was transferred to investment property at fair value of
HK$34,391,000 (2017: Nil) based on valuation by Castores
Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$9,221,000 (2017: Nil) was recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, furniture, equipment
and leasehold improvements for manufacturing and sale
of footwear products business of HK$1,609,000 were fully
impaired as the Group restructured the operation to which
the property, plant and equipment belong.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited

HE T N\E=ZA=+—HBHILEE 1
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BUBEAERGEMEEZ (BB ERQ
AR 4B 1% - BRE (E /243,612,000/% 7T (=
T—+F: T ) K —IE 1 F J51£34,391,000
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31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Carrying amount at beginning of year 7 %] 2 B E & 53,329 89,038
Additions ANE 35,084 -
Transfer from deposit (note 17) #E#& B %% (MizE17) 3,916 =
Amortised during the year 72 4 (A # §5 (1,758) (2,325)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 30) H & M & 2~ &l (Hf7£30) - (23,078)
Assets included in disposal group held for sale (note 11)

SAAREHEZHESEEE (MizE11) - (7,440)
Exchange realignment 4h & 3 2 2,296 (2,866)
Carrying amount at 31 March ®R= A =+—HB ZEEE 92,867 53,329
Current portion included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

FIAFEATFRIE 1R & e & kI8 2 BNEA &R 3 (1,819) (1,742)
Non-current portion 3Bl EAEE 5> 91,048 51,587
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31 March 2018 —&— )1 =HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 F/& T

Fair value at beginning of year I #] 2 A F (& 136,484 123,247
Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation EfE A FEWZ, (E1E) 5,449 (1,703)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14)

BREME MBELRME (MiE14) 39,394 22,405
Exchange realignment 4h & 3 2 16,391 (7,465)
Fair value at 31 March R=A=+—HZ2 Q¥ @& 197,718 136,484

The Group has determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of assets, i.e., commercial and
industrial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2018 based on valuations performed by
Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$197,718,000 (2017:
HK$136,484,000). There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in prior years.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.
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31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

Fair value hierarchy NFEEER

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as RZBE-NF=ZA=1+—HE=_ZE—tF=
at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are estimated by A=1+—H REBEZREMEZAFETD
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value FRAERT A BRE ARG AT AR
measurements are categorised under Level 3. ENREFE=H-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

FR F-REF_FAzEHEERATE
AEOMBEAZS=AHBEE=AEL (=
T—tFE)o

RAFEBRE=-FRADBZ A TEFEY

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: B :
Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
[GEZ/ES IEME &t
HK$'000 T  HK$'000 F&L  HK$'000 Fi&TT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2016

R-ZE—A"FHA-BZEHEE 9,292 113,955 123,247
Fair value losses on revaluation recognised in profit or loss

REZTRRAZEGRATFERE (167) (1,536) (1,703)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14)

BEREVE BELRE (KE14) - 22,405 22,405
Exchange realignment 9 & 58 % (579) (6,886) (7,465)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017

RZE—+F=A=+—HK=ZZT—tFHA—AH

ZERHE 8,546 127,938 136,484
Fair value gains on revaluation recognised in profit or loss

REGZFRAZEGRFERS 3,997 1,452 5,449
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 14)

BEAME WER&E (HE14) 34,391 5,003 39,394
Exchange realignment 9 & 58 % 2,201 14,190 16,391
Carrying amount at 31 March 2018

RZZE-NF=ZA=1+—HZKHEAE 49,135 148,583 197,718
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Fair value hierarchy (continued) AV EEBHK (&)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and T RIEEYMEGEMFER 2 MERERE
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ZANBEBIHE:
Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
EXPe] B R % EXTIEERAHE & B =5 i F 15
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
Commercial Market comparable Gross unit rate per HK$31,000 to HK$26,000
properties method square metre HK$46,000
[HE37ES ™35 b BUX BYHKBRBEMER 31,0008 T & 26,0007 7T
46,0005% JT
Industrial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$7 to HK$6 to
approach (per square metre and HK$25 HK$18
per month)
IEME WABRE HrEESEE TBTE I
(BFHREER) 258 T 187 7T
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
HeRERX
Market yield 8% 8%
35 W A &

EBFIREEMEER GHAESEE (S
FHREGRA)RESEREARES L7+
S (TR BEBUREME 2 A TFEKRE L
/OO - B WRa R EBAIRES -
(TR e8BRENEZATER
BT (L) -

A significant increase/(decrease) in the gross unit rate per
square metre, estimated rental value (per square metre and
per month) and rental growth rate in isolation would result
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in
the market yield in isolation would result in a significant
decrease/(increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.
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As at 31 March 2017, included in the deposits were
deposits of HK$3,916,000 for the lease of a parcel of
land in Vietnam. Pursuant to the letter of offer entered into
between the Group and an independent third party on
30 April 2015, the Group would lease the parcel of land
in Vietham until 2058 at a consideration of approximately
US$5,000,000 (approximately HK$39,000,000), subject to
adjustment based on the actual area of the land pursuant
to the final survey. Further details of the transaction were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 April
2015. On 31 March 2018, a land use right lease agreement
was signed by the Group and the right for use of the parcel
of land was granted to the Group. Accordingly, deposits
of HK$3,916,000 were transferred to prepaid land lease
payments during the year ended 31 March 2018 (note 15).

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

RZZE—+tF=A=+—H EeesHE
HMET— 1B 23,916,000 T0iE % * IRIEA
EEEBYE AR _T—RAFMNA=T
HEI V2 Z8H AEBKHAEME B+
- BEZFH/)\F - KB 495,000,000 7T
(#£939,000,000/ 7T, ) - M AT AR & S 4% 5081 2
THERERELAR ZRH2E—FF
BERARARBAPA-_ZT—RAFNA=T
Bz AARE - R-_E—NE=A=1+—
B AEERT—HIEREREHH
Rtz ERAEERTAEE Bt &2
3,916,000 TEH ABE T —N\F=H
=t+—HIEFEZEMN T AEFHIE (M
15) ©

2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 &7t HK$000 F/& T

Share of net assets E1H & & % E

45,930 57,5658

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

R — R & AR FRIREER - 8 KA E
FEAS SRR B E R o
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The particulars of the Group’s principal associates are as

REE

TEBMERRZFBOT:

follows:
Percentage of
ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
ZNUNGIE Yok
=L ERTROEEFE ERPEES L Exmaso FEER
Alliance Investment Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
Development Limited LR RBERRHE ®E R
(“Alliance Investment”)
Star Praised Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
Rl REARRES REER
Kingmaker Il (Vietnam) Registered capital of Vietnam 40  Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. US$11,779,549 o] manufacturing
ERIlIE=F HEEREM
11,779,549% 7T
Empress Choice Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding

gL

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Percentage of

ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
FARERRE
=L ERTROBERE EPEES L EZEo FEEH
Maystar (Vietham) Registered capital of Vietnam 40  Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. US$3,600,000 e manufacturing
Bl NEEREM
3,600,000% 7T
Ally Power Developments Ltd. Ordinary share British Virgin Islands 40  Trading of footwear
LB RBHBRES products
HEEEME
Ally Team (China) Ltd. Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40  Investment holding
Tk BB REER
Guangzhou Able Team Registered capital of PRC 40  Trading of footwear
Trading Ltd. US$1,000,000 i products
Bl ERERED
1,000,000% 7T
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The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TR RASBERER S TEKX B
information of the Group’s associates that are not RAIZEHIHEER:

individually material:

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 F# T  HK$000 Ti&7T

Share of the associates’ loss for the year

FEIGEEE R A FAER (11,628) (1,196)
Share of the associates’ other comprehensive income/(expenses)

B E AR EMEEBA (FAX) - =
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive income/(expenses)

JEMREtE AR 2EBA S (FAX)458 (11,628) (1,196)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investments

in the associates

AEBRBE NG 2RE ZREBE 45,930 57,558
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F e

HK$’000 F&7t HK$'000 F/& T

Listed equity investments, at fair value

FHRAKRE  BRATE - 530
During the year, the fair value gain in respect of the Group’s RER - REM 2 E R AR < A% B 0] #
available-for-sale equity investments recognised in other HERAIZE 2 A FE K A82,000/8 7T
comprehensive income amounted to HK$82,000 (2017: (ZE—+EF:41,00087T) °
HK$41,000).

The fair values of the listed equity investments were based ERARE 2 A FEIET S RERE -

on quoted market prices.
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2018
= S
HK$’000 T % 7T

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000 T8 7T

Raw materials R # £ 90,541 77,350
Work in progress 7 & i 14,138 15,072
Finished goods & &4 65,266 66,251
169,945 158,673

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 T8t  HK$'000 Ti& T

Accounts and bills receivable JEUBRIE & Z 1% 95,886 141,459

The Group’s accounts and bills receivable mainly related
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment
terms with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are
normally payable within 90 days of issuance, except for
certain well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s senior management. Accounts receivable are non-
interest-bearing, except for a balance due from a customer
of approximately HK$28,490,000 (2017: HK$65,480,000)
which bears interest at 0.25% (2017: 0.25%) for a fixed
period of 60 days.

AEBZEWEBREEFZRIHEAE
REGBZEFPERA KL TER ZMARER
TZEREEAR -KREAKXEEBERRT A
FREANELHEEZI180R RERIN — K
BFEZERHAWA - AEBEBEITESIZES
KUz fE U BRIE - LURIKE B R - B HF
AN REBEEASESREEEETHEZ -

FEWERIB NGB ME— B PR 2 88584
28,490,000/% 7t ( =% —+ 4 : 65,480,000
BIL)IR025E 2 EXFE(ZE— L5

0.25/E) - EEEHRH /601 -
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NEMZNERSELE  BEREBRZER

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods
delivered, is as follows:

RERARZEREDTWAT

2018
—E-N\HF
HK$’000 T & T

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000 T8 7T

Within 90 days 90H A 95,515 141,441
Between 91 and 180 days 91H £180H 366 13
Between 181 and 365 days 181 H £365H 1 B
Over 365 days 365H A + 4 -

95,886 141,459

The ageing analysis of accounts and bills receivable that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

WARR B HBRRE 2 BURE KRB 2 Rk

DATER

2018
AN
HK$’000 F & 7T

2017
—E—+F
HK$’'000 F7%& 7T

Neither past due nor impaired 7 % 8 8k 7 H 38 5l (& 84,133 127,640
Less than 90 days past due # 5§ 4 FA90H 11,685 13,802
Over 90 days past due #1 #8890 H 68 17

95,886 141,459

I % 36 BRSO (E 2 B W R IE S R D B
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers for whom REFEBZER BREIHAWEBERNRE
there was no recent history of default. 8% o

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
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Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

EBBEXEINEREZBWTE  PRE
TEAKEBRRIE CBIRP - BEAEL
B ARREEMRAL UEFERAFE
SIEHRERE RASGEEERAEEX
B MERDBRER 2BEEDR - NEE
TR Z AR A T AERREEMER
RITZHE -

2018
AN
HK$’000 F & T

2017
—ET—+F
HK$'000 F+7%& 7T

Cash and bank balances 8 4 98 17 4 & 81,353 101,923
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three months

REFNMBELR=MEA 2 EHEFER 36,350 101,689
Time deposits with original maturity of over three months

when acquired

RERREEHBES =@A 2 EBEFEX 686,589 572,204
Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 M %R IR 4 18 B 804,292 775,816
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At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$11,480,000 (2017: HK$11,185,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one week and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at ez EM B AR  BNERBEREER
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods WMEHRRZERITAT

received, is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
HK$'000 F# T  HK$000 Ti&7T

Within 90 days 90H A 115,162 129,954
Between 91 and 180 days 91 H =180H 13,201 14,757
Between 181 and 365 days 181 H £365H 220 547
Over 365 days 365H A 4,376 3,564
132,959 148,822
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are FERTERIE AT B - B —AR7ZBH90E HAR N5
normally settled on 90-day terms. o
2018 2017
—E2-N\F§ —E—tF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE & & BE A&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FRT FET FHBT
Forward currency contracts & Hi9ME & #) - 927 - -
The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts were RESMNESH 2 REBEEEATERR £
the same as their fair values. The above transactions P RITEEB IR 25 T8 BN
involving derivative financial instruments were with a Atk BEERITHEST

creditworthy bank with no recent history of default.
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The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Net fair value
losses on non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to
HK$7,598,000 were charged to the statement of profit or
loss (2017: HK$530,000) (note 7).

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are based
on quoted prices.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had available
banking facilities amounting to HK$99,000,000 (2017:
HK$99,000,000) of which nil (2017: HK$805,000) was
utilised. The banking facilities were supported by corporate
guarantees executed by the Company.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Revaluation of
buildings and
investment
properties
BFER
REYHEEME
HK$’000 F % 7T

At 1 April 2016 R=ZF—/X&FEM A —H 16,878
Deferred tax debited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

FARFTAGEBRER 2ELERE (KFF10) (281)
Deferred tax charged to equity during the year £ Rt A2 2 IR L 57 18 4,328
Exchange realignment 4 78 £ (1,048)

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017

RZE—+tF=A=+—BERZZE—tFHEA—H 19,877
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10)

FRFFAZEERKR ZELEHIE (:E10) 1,682
Exchange realignment %) & 3 2 2,152
At 31 March 2018 R=—ZE— \F=ZHA=+—H 23,711
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Shares B
Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$’000
EREEIIOGETZEEREE FEx
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F —E-N\E —T—+F
Authorised: JE & :
Balance at beginning and end of year
F Y R FARE S 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: & 21T M &2 :
Balance at beginning of year & #] 45 #4 699,693,445 695,842,445 69,969 69,584
Share options exercised (note (a))
BT AR (M E@)) 2,082,000 7,257,000 208 726
Repurchased (note (b))
fE e (B 5E (o)) (8,274,000) (3,406,000) (827) (341)
Balance at end of year F #& 4% &4 693,501,445 699,693,445 69,350 69,969
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Shares (continueq)

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to 150,000 (2017:
305,000), 210,000 (2017: 669,000), 500,000 (2017:
1,660,000), 850,000 (2017: 2,337,000) and 372,000
(2017: 2,286,000) share options were exercised at
the subscription prices of HK$0.972, HK$1.196,
HK$1.58, HK$1.25 and HK$1.908 per share,
respectively. These resulted in the issue of 2,082,000
(2017: 7,257,000) shares of HK$0.1 each and a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$2,959,000 (2017: HK$11,002,000). An amount of
HK$711,000 (2017: HK$1,717,000) was transferred
from the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

During the year, the Company repurchased its
8,274,000 (2017: 3,406,000) ordinary shares at prices
ranging from HK$2.08 to HK$2.48 per share at a
total consideration of approximately HK$18,566,000
(2017: HK$6,276,000). 8,274,000 (2017: 3,406,000)
repurchased ordinary shares were cancelled during
the year. Details of the repurchases are disclosed
under the heading of “Purchase, redemption or sale
of the Company’s listed securities” in the Report
of the Directors. The premium of approximately
HK$17,739,000 (2017: HK$5,935,000) paid on the
repurchase of these shares was debited to the share
premium account and an amount of HK$827,000
(2017: HK$341,000) was transferred from retained
profits of the Company to the capital redemption
reserve.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

Bt (&)
FR-BRARZEEHMT

K72 150,0001p ( == —+4 : 305,000
%) 210,000 (=T — L F:
669,00013 ) ~ 500,00017 (= ZT —+
£ :1,660,00017 ) - 850,000f7 (=&
—-+4: 2,337,000 ) %372,0001%
(=—Z—+4:2,286,00017 ) BB +

R D B IE R FRR0.972% 7T -
1196870 1.688 L 1.258 T &
1.908 T 2 R EEITHE - H UL 39T
2,082,000/ (=& —+ % : 7,257,000
i) &R EE0. 1B T 2 1D+ R 0Bk
B Rz 8232 R(E 452,959,000/ 7T
(=Z—+t%:11,002,000 7T ) ° B
RITEE - BEAREREFT711,000%
7T (ZF—+4F 1,717,000 7T ) %
ERMNEER-

RAFEE - Q7 LA F #R2.0878 T &
2.487 70 2 (B & fE 81 H.8,274,0008% &
WAE (=ZF — % :3,406,0008%)
#LR(EY A18,566,0008 L (=&
— % :6,276,000/ 7T) c FTEEE 2
8,274,000 Tk (=T — L 4F:
3,406,000 ) E RN ANFE ek 88 - 8
BrHBREEERENIBE B
Bk HEARARAZ EWHES] —B
BRE-REEZERODAIN ZH
fE#17,739,0008 Tt (=T — & :
5,935,000 7t) B B B 5 & BBk
B WE R AR RRE & 87
827,000/ 7T ( —F — 4 : 341,000/
TT)EEAREE -
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Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme included the Company’s
directors (including independent non-executive directors),
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, and any shareholder
of the Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 29 August 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date
and will expire in 2021.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Group may not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting, the maximum number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Share option scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be determined by the board of directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion. This period will expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the
time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, and the
amount payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average of
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (jii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on
the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RS R Bl 5
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BB (E)

AARBZER THAH T2RRLRE
SEMBEARDBRREVGAKEARREL
FRITESERAE - WIN RER12ME A
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the TR AT NIRRT S T RITHE 2B
Share Option Scheme during the year: PR #E
Number of share options
BREHA
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2018  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™ of options***
RERE
RZF-t% R=B-NF BREz  BHAHZ
SRERLTER MA-B  ERARE  ERGE  EREX ZA=1-B BREZEHES BREZTREE " FAIRE™
HKS7E T HKS# T
pershareR  per shareB i}
Directors £Z
Mam. Huang Hsiu-dluan, 150,000 - - - 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Helen “E-AF-AztZR  ZE-\fF-A-RE-E=-ENA-T/\R
e
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 240,000 - (200,000) - 40,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ARHEE ZE-mE-A+AR —E-RE-A+/BEZE=-FNAZTNR
180,000 - - - 180,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-A+AR “5-RF-A-RAE-Z2--£NA=t/\A
180,000 - - - 180,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-mE-A+AR 8- NE-A-REZZ2--£NA=T/\A
200,000 - (200,000) - - 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.260 1.2
“E-25-AthE ZE-RF-ATABECEC-SNAZTNB
150,000 - (150,000) - - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.260 1.2
ZE-25-AthA ZE-AF-A-BECRZ-FMACTAR
150,000 - (150,000) - - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.260 1.2
“E-25-AthA ZE-tF-A-BECR--FMACTAR
200,000 - - - 200,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 o 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AF-AZfZB ZE-AF-ACtZRECEC-FNACTAR
150,000 - - - 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZfZB ZE-tF-A-BECRZ-FMACTAR
150,000 - - - 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZfZB ZE-N\F-A-BECRZ-FMAZTAR
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
ZE-\F-AthE ZE-N\F-ATABEZE--§NAZTNB
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
ZE-\F-AthA  ZE-AF-A-BECRZ-FNAZTAR
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212

—E-\F-AthR —E-FF-f-RE-F--FN\A-T/\A
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Share option scheme (continued) BARRESTE (&)
Number of share options
BREUE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2018  of share options* Exercise period of share options options™ of options***
RERE
RZB-tF RZ%-N§ BEREz  BHAEz
SRERLTER BA-B  EmRE  FAE FARX ZBST-B BREZRLAM BREZTREE e FAIRE™
HK$7E T HKS& 7
pershare®R  per share§ iR
Directors (continued)
2(2)
Mr. Mumma, Adin David - 260,000 - - 260,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
SAEEE ZE-NE-AthB ZE-\E-ATARZEZE=-FNAZTNA
- 195,000 - - 195,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-\E-AthE ZE-NE-A-BRECRC-ENACTAR
- 195,000 - - 195,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-\E-AthE  CECRE-A-HECERC-ENACTAR
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu 120,000 - (120,000) - - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
BRSEE ZF-nE-AztZB B N\§-A-BEZR--F/\AZT/B
- 200,000 - - 200,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
ZF-N\E-AthE ZE-N\E-AThBEZR--§A=T/B
- 150,000 - - 150,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
ZF-N\E-AthE ZE-NE-A-BEZE=-FN\A=T/R
- 150,000 - - 150,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
ZF-N\E-AthE ZRRF-A-BE-F--FN\A-T/R
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
Number of share options
BREHA

Price of the

Exercise ~ Company's

At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at

Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2018  of share options* Exercise period of share options options™ of options***

RERE

RZ%-tf RZ%-N§ BEREz  BHAEz
SRERLTER BA-B  EnRE  FAE FARX ZBST-B BREZRLAM BREZTREE ke RARRE™

HK$7E T HKS& 7
per shareBR  per shareB R

Directors (continued)

2(2)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, 90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Anthony, SBS, JP ZE-RE-AZTZR 3 N\§-R-AECR--FNA-TAR
AkEEE - 60,000 - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
REFEE ATHT ZE-N\E-AthA “2-\5-AtNRE-E-_-§NA=1/A
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-\E-AthE ZE-NE-A-BRECRC-ENACTAR
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-\E-AthE  CECRE-A-HECERC-ENACTAR
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 120,000 - (120,000) - - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
RiEkE ZF-nE-AztZB B N\§-A-BEZR--F/\AZT/B
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
ZF-N\E-AthE ZE-N\E-AThBEZR--§A=T/B
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
ZF-N\E-AthE ZE-NE-A-BEZE=-FN\A=T/R
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212

Z3-\§-AthB ZE-RE-A-BEZRC-FNAZT/\A
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Share option scheme (continued) BARRESTE (&)
Number of share options
BREUE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2018  of share options* Exercise period of share options options™ of options***
RERE
RZB-tF RZ%-N§ BEREz  BHAEz
SRERLTER BA-B  EmRE  FAE FARX ZBST-B BREZRLAM BREZTREE e FAIRE™
HK$7E T HKS& 7
pershare®R  per share§ iR
Directors (continued)
2(2)
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 90,000 - - - 90,000 183 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 095
FREAE Z3-25-fAt=R  CE-ME-A-BECEZ-ENA-TAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“E-ZE-A+EA “E-mE-A-AE-E--FN\A-T/R
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“F-ZF-A+1A “3-Rf-f-REZF--£\A=1/\A
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-At/A “E-PE-A+rBE-E--ENAZTNB
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-At/A “3-Rf-f-REZF--£\A=1/\A
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-At/A ZE-NE-A-BAEZE--FN\AZTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
“E-RF-AthA “E-RE-AthAZ-E--ENA-tNR
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-a5-AthA ZE-NE-A-BAEZE--FN\AZTAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-RF-AthB ZE-tE-R-AECZ--FNA-TNR
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-NE-AZTZH ZE-AF-ACTZBECEC-E)VACTAH
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-ACTZH CE-tE-A-HRECERC-ENACTAE
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZTZH ZE-N\F-A-HRECRC-ENACTAE
= 60,000 - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB B N\E-ATAAZEZE=-FNAZTAA
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB  ZE-hWE-R-BEZZ--FNA-TNR
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB  ZZZFE-R-AECZ--FNA-TAR
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
Number of share options
BREHA

Price of the

Exercise ~ Company's

At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at

Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2018  of share options* Exercise period of share options options™ of options***

RERE

RZ%-tf RZ%-N§ BEREz  BHAEz
SRERLTER BA-B  EnRE  FAE FARX ZBST-B BREZRLAM BREZTREE ke RARRE™

HK$7E T HKS& 7
per shareBR  per shareB R

Directors (continued)

2(2)
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, 120,000 - (120,000) - - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Steven “E-mE-At/A ZE-mE-ATAREZR-FNAZTIR
AP IRk 90,000 - (90,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-At/A “E-Rf-A-AE-E--§N\A-T/R
90,000 - (90,000) - - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-At/A ZE-NE-A-BAEZE--FN\AZTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-NE-AZTZH ZE-AF-ACtZBECEC-E/VACTAH
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-ACTZH CE-tE-A-HRECRC-ENACTAE
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-AZTZR 3 N\§-R-AECR--FNA-TAR
= 60,000 - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-N\E-AthA ZE-NE-AThBEZZ--§NA=T/R
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB  ZE-hWE-R-BECZ--FNA-TAR
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12

“3-\§-AthB “E-FE-f-RE-F--£)\A-t/A
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Share option scheme (continued) BARRESTE (&)
Number of share options
BREUE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2018  of share options* Exercise period of share options options™ of options***
RERE
RZB-tF RZ%-N§ BEREz  BHAEz
SRERLTER BA-B  EmRE  FAE FARX ZBST-B BREZRLAM BREZTREE e FAIRE™
HK$7E T HKS& 7
pershare®R  per share§ iR
Directors (confinueq)
2(2)
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 60,000 - (60,000) - - 13 January 2012 13 January 2012 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
RXERL “3-25-ft=R  ZE-Z5-AtZAE-Z--ENAZTNR
45,000 - (45,000) - - 13 January 2012 1 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
“F-ZF-A+=H “5-Zf-f-RE-E--f\A-t/\A
45,000 - (45,000) - - 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
Z3-25-fAt=R  CE-ME-A-BECEZ-ENA-TAR
120,000 - (120,000) - - 15 January 2013 15 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 119 119
“F-ZF-A+1A “E-E-A+RBE-E-_-ENAZtNR
90,000 - (90,000) - - 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“3-Z5-fA+RR  ZE-ME-A-BECZZ-ENA-TAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“E-ZE-A+EA “3-Rf-f-REZF--£\A=1/\A
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-At/A “E-mE-A+~AE-E--FNA-1T/A
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-At/A “E-Rf-A-AE-E--§N\A-T/R
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-At/A ZE-NE-A-BAEZE--FN\AZTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
“E-RF-AthA “E-RE-AthAZ-E--ENA-tNR
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-RF-AthA ZE3- E-A-BEZF--£N\A=1/\H
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-RE-AthB ZE-tE-R-AECZ--FNA=TNR
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZTZH ZE-AF-ACtZBECEC-E/VACTAH
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-ACTZH ZE-tE-A-HRECERC-ENACTAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-AZTZH ZE-N\F-A-HRECRC-ENACTAR
= 60,000 - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-N\E-AthA ZE-NE-AThBEZZ--§NA=T/R
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB  ZE-hWE-R-BEZZ--FNA-TNR
- 45,000 - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB  ZZZFE-R-AECZ--FNA-TAR
5200000 2,350,000  (1,600,000) - 5,950,000
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
Number of share options
BREHA
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2018  of share options* Exercise period of share options options™ of options***
RERE
RZB-tF RZ%-N§ BEREz  BHAEz
SRERLTER BA-B  EnRE  FAE FARX ZBST-B BREZRLAM BREZTREE e FAIRE™
HK$7E T HKS& 7
pershare®R  per share§ iR
Other employees
iftEE
In aggregate 40,000 - - - 40,000 13 January 2012 13 January 2012 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
af “3-25-ft=R  ZE-Z5-AtZAE-Z--ENAZTNR
30,000 - - - 30,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
“F-ZF-A+=H “5-Zf-f-RE-E--f\A-t/\A
30,000 - - - 30,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
Z3-25-fAt=R  CE-ME-A-BECEZ-ENA-TAR
112,000 - - - 112,000 15 January 2013 15 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 119 119
“F-ZF-A+1A “E-E-A+RBE-E-_-ENAZtNR
110,000 - - - 110,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“3-Z5-fA+RR  ZE-ME-A-BECZZ-ENA-TAR
288,000 - - - 288,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“E-ZE-A+EA “3-Rf-f-REZF--£\A=1/\A
15,000 - - - 15,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z3-Z5-fAtRR ZE-AE-A-BECEZ-ENA-TAR
640,000 - - (340,000) 300,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-At/A “E-PE-A+rBE-E--ENAZTNB
480,000 - - (255,000) 225,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-At/A “E-Rf-A-AE-E--§N\A-T/R
480,000 - - (255,000) 225,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-At/A ZE-NE-A-BAEZE--FN\AZTAR
740,000 - (140,000) (260,000) 340,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
“E-RF-AthA “E-RE-AthAZ-E--ENA-tNR
555,000 - (105,000) (195,000) 255,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-RF-AthA - E-A-BEZF--£N\AZ1/\A
615,000 - (105,000) (195,000) 315,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-RE-AthB ZE-tE-R-AECZ--FNA=TNR
724,000 - - (80,000) 644,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-AE-AZTZH ZE-AF-ACtZBECEC-E/VACTAH
630,000 - (12,000) (60,000) 558,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-ACTZH ZE-tE-A-HRECERC-ENACTAR
1,128,000 - (120,000) (60,000) 948,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-AZTZH ZE-N\F-A-HRECRC-ENACTAR
- 740,000 - - 740,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-N\E-AthA ZE-NE-AThBEZZ--§NA=T/R
= 565,000 - - 505,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB  ZE-hWE-R-BEZZ--FNA-TNR
= 565,000 - - 505,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
ZE-NE-AthB  ZZZFE-R-AECZ--FNA-TAR
6,617,000 1,850,000 (482,000) (1,700,000 6,285,000
11,817,000 4,200,000  (2,082,0000  (1,700,000) 12,235,000
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Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

*x

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of
grant of the options.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$2.42 per
share (2017: HK$2.16 per share).

The 2,082,000 (2017: 7,257,000) share options exercised
during the year resulted in the issue of 2,082,000 (2017:
7,257,000) ordinary shares of the Company and new share
capital of approximately HK$208,000 (2017: HK$726,000)
and share premium of approximately HK$2,751,000 (2017:
HK$10,276,000), as further detailed in note 27 to the
financial statements. An amount of HK$711,000 (2017:
HK$1,717,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H
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FNEITEE22,082,00017 R HE (—ZF—+
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T —+F:7,257,000% 70 ) AR 7 E %
A B 37 B% 7N #9208,00008 7T (=T — £ 5 ¢
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Share option scheme (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had
190,000, 795,000, 1,750,000, 1,510,000, 3,790,000 and
4,200,000 share options with exercise prices of HK$0.972,
HK$1.196, HK$1.58, HK$1.25, HK$1.908 and HK$2.17
per share, respectively, outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which altogether represented approximately 1.8%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 12,235,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional issued share capital of
approximately HK$1,224,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$20,909,000 (before issue expenses).

As at the date of this report, the number of securities of
the Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme was approximately 23,003,000, representing
approximately 3.3% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report. No share options
were cancelled for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4,200,000 (2017:
Nil) share options were granted and their fair value was
estimated at approximately HK$1,644,000 (2017: Nil). The
Group recognised share option expense of HK$905,000
(2017: HK$1,122,000) during the year.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited

BB (E)

RERE R AR R RIK AR AT 213% L
i® AR AT {5 2 B AR i £ 5 190,00015 + 795,000
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1T 2 5 B £9/528,003,0000% - HE
ZAN/N TEAZ}K#&iEIHHZE%ﬁHxZMUS 3%
%Zi )\ﬁ&_f ti A=+—8

RBEEZE-—NF=ZA=+—HBILFE"
4,200,000 R E (ZZE—+F - |)BEE
B E AT EME491,644,0008 7T (=&
—tF | FA AEEDHERERER
X /905,000 7t (= F — 4 : 1,122,000
ETT) ©
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Share option scheme (continued)

The fair value of share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2018 was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the respective model used
for the year ended 31 March 2018:

Date of share options granted: 19 January 2018

Volatility (%): 35.068
Risk-free interest rate (%): 1.526
Expected life of options (year): 3.61
Dividend yield (%): 4.04

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

Share award scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 3 June 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). The
specific objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions of certain employees of any
member of the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

BB (E)

BE-_T—\E=A=+—HILEESEEH
BREAFEDIAFLBSHER —ERGE
HoEEERBRHEREZERRIEN T
NHRREE—E-N\EF=A=+—HILE
EEAMERZERZBABR:

REERELS: —Z-N\F—A+hAH
R (%) : 35.068
A [ B 2R (%) 1.526
ERECEDREH (F) - 3.61
BB & (%) : 4.04

BREZBHFHNRRELBIETE A&
RBEEBRAIRE IR 2 TR - TRHR I8
R BE 2R IR BN R KBS 2 Rk - 1B
ARBBRVEAERERER -

B 47 R Bt &

ARBEEZEE ([EFQ)R_FT—TFRX
A=ZR (IRMBEH]) | — B 2R
8| ([Rxfn 2B at8l)) - B D BBy At 8l 2 45
EEBRRERBETAKBEEMKEARZE
BEHZ BRI 4 T RE) BRIEBZER
BRESASEZFHELERBRY X
B RBABHSAEEZE-FER-
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Share award scheme (continued)

The Board may, from time to time, at its sole discretion
select any employee (the “Selected Employee”) of any
member of the Group for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares
to be awarded to the Selected Employees by taking into
consideration matters including (without limitation) the
general financial condition of the Group and the rank and
performance of the relevant Selected Employee. The Board
is entitled to impose any conditions (including a period of
continued service within the Group after the date of the
final approval by the Board of the total amount of shares
to be awarded to the relevant Selected Employee on a
single occasion pursuant to the Share Award Scheme), as
it deems appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect
to the entitlement of the Selected Employee to the awarded
shares.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to the Selected Employee under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of
the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date and such

date of early termination as determined by the Board.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 June 2010.

No shares were awarded under the Share Award Scheme
for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.
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The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

(@) For the year ended 31 March 2018

Disposal of - BEZB N EZEBEREZER QA

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

AEERAFE BT RERERY
BHHNH GRS 2 G ERBBE -

(@ BE-ZE—-N\E=A=+—HILLEE
HE L SEHNEEFEZSERLA

HK$’000 F & T

Net assets disposed of: FT i & & & /%8 :

Accounts receivable & Y B 18 1,098
Inventories 7 & -
1,098
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 11)
HE—FERE ARz e (M) 2,282
3,380
Satisfied by: A N5 75 =X 1+ :
Cash consideration 3£ X & 3,380
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(@) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (continueq) (a)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is
as follows:

BE-—Z2—-N\F=A=+—HLEE
(%)

B E—RNEBARMFRZIRE R
EEBYMRANFESITAT

HK$’000 ¥ & 7t

Cash consideration and net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
FALE B RARICHEeREURBE e RBESEEMR

AR 3,380

(b) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (b)

Disposal of Kingmaker Zhong Shan

BE-_Z—-)\F=A=+—HLEE
HEIEZEH L

HK$’000 ¥ & 7t

Net assets disposed of:Ff H & & 2 % (&

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - = N & & 43,441
Prepaid land lease payments F& it + 3 8 & 7k 78 7,440
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE &t & & & £ {th FE 1~ BR 18 (6,255)
Tax payables &1~ {18 (8,982)
35,644
Exchange fluctuation reserve [ 5. )% B) & (22,441)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —E B A 7] 2 Y= 174,381
187,584

Satisfied by: AR5 75 20 3% i -
Cash consideration 8 4 (& 187,584
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(c)

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is
as follows:

(b)

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

BE-_ZT-N\E=A=+—-HLEE
(%)

AREE—RMNBARMELE 2R RE
EEBYMRNFEDOTWT

HK$’000 F & T

Cash consideration and net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary

BRLE—HNBRARZRASKREUARRE KRS EFEYRAFE

187,584

For the year ended 31 March 2017

On 9 January 2017, the Group entered into a
joint venture agreement with an independent third
party, Vast King International Holdings Limited, to
establish Alliance Investment with a registered capital
of US$28,120,000. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group transferred its entire equity interests in
Star Praised Limited and its subsidiary (the “Star
Praised Group”) and Empress Choice Limited and its
subsidiary (the “Empress Choice Group”) to Alliance
Investment at a cash consideration of approximately
US$20,000,000 (subject to adjustment), of which
approximately US$8,000,000 was used for paying
up the Group’s 40% equity interests in Alliance
Investment. The difference between the final adjusted
consideration amount and US$8,000,000 was paid
by Alliance Investment to the Group in cash. Vast
King International Holdings Limited subscribed for
60% equity interests in Alliance Investment at cash
consideration of approximately US$12,000,000. On 1
March 2017, the Star Praised Group and the Empress
Choice Group ceased to be the Group’s subsidiaries
and became associates.

(©

BE-Z—tHF=ZA=+—-HLEE

RZZB—+F—ANB AEEEBT
2 = 77 Vast King International Holdings
Limited&] 32 & & # % * AR SZ Alliance
Investment -+ 5= it & 74X 528,120,0003%
TCo R  AEBBIRESNRELD
20,000,000% 7T ( A] F## ) [A] Alliance
Investment#4 5 E 7 Star Praised
Limited & E Kt B8 A 7] ([ Star Praised
£ 3 | ) LA K Empress Choice Limited &
E KB 2 A ([Empress Choice(2E | )
Z & B AR 4% - & 7 498,000,000 7T A
{E S 1+ K 2 E R Alliance Investment
ZAONRIE HREABRRESE
E28,000,000% JT Z = & # H Alliance
Investment LA 38 & ] 78 & [#] 52 < © Vast
King International Holdings Limited
AR & K (B 4912,000,000% 7T R &
Alliance InvestmentZ 60%M% 1 o 7 —
T—+F=H—H " Star Praised& B
K Empress Choicek BT~ B AR K E
ZHIB AT MK A E QA -
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(c) For the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

© BE-Z-—tF=A=t-HLFE
(&)

Notes

=2 HK$’000 F & 7T

Net assets disposed of: Ff & & &% E :

Property, plant and equipment #13%  Bi & & & & 14 86,232
Prepaid land lease payments F& it + #b 70 & 718 15 23,078

Deposits paid for the lease of a parcel of land
HE—EHE s EMNRS 27,546
136,856
Exchange fluctuation reserve FE ¥, 5% B {1 7,279
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & [ & A 7] 2 Wk 4,167
148,302

Satisfied by: JA T 753 & 1

Investments in associates Hi & A 7% & 58,724
Cash consideration 8 4 (& 89,578
148,302
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(a)

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued) (c)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is
as follows:

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

BE-_ZT—tHE=A=+t—-HLEE
(%)

REEMBARELZREE KRS
BYRNFEDFTWT

HK$’000 F & T

Cash consideration and net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

BRLENBRARCRSREURRE KRS EFEYRAFE

89,578

As lessor (a)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to seven years.
The terms of the leases generally also required the
tenants to pay security deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling
due as follows:

ERHAA

AEERBEEHOLHLEAERE
W (FIEE16) - AR 2 BN F
MEELF - BOGRK—RINERAS
SNRBEE -

RBEIR > AEERBEBPRI
PHREHE 2B 2 KRR KEELOUW
FARBE B BERMT

2018 2017
—E-N% —E—tf

HK$’000 F&t  HK$'000 F/& T

Within one year —4F A 7,687 3,712

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
F_EFRF (PHEEEMTE) 8,697 ~
After five years L F 1% 1,165 =
17,549 3,712
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(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

(b) EREEA

AEERBEEHOLHEAEHET
T RET BOBITEENT—=

mo&E

RBEIR  AEERE N AT LS

M #) 2 RS AR L 58

R UNNE

2018
—B-N\F
HK$’000 T8 T

#ER 2 B

2017
—+F
HK$'000 T 7T

Within one year —F A 1,642 1,426

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
E_EZFELF (BREEMF) 2,393 32
4,035 1,458

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 31(b) above, the Group had contracted for the

following capital commitments:

(i)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments in respect of management fees payable
in relation to certain land in Vietnam falling due as
follows:

B b SBT3 (D) Pt il 2 48 & A8 KO A 51
REEIH NI BEAAERTLAK

) REBEHR NEERTIIHREHAE
NezERETHE LI 2T AE

m

2018
—EB-N\F
HK$’000 F & T

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000 T/ 7T

Within one year — & & 1,322 566

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
F_EERF (RIEEEMSE) 5,286 2,263
After five years L& 14 38,203 13,531
44,811 16,360
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(i)  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had (iy RMEBRR T*EBEBE@EYE BER
capital commitments in respect of property, plant and B BRSNS
equipment as follows:
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 F#& 7t  HK$000 FH&7T

Contracted but not provided for

B AT AV B R
— construction of factory buildings
-BEAEIRR 1,755 7,020
— purchase of software
—BEEM 117 546
1,872 7,566
(i)  Other commitments (i) E e
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 ¥ % T

HK$'000 T /& 7T

Contracted but not provided for & 5T 4118 & & 1
— establishment of production plants in Mainland China

— FA R B N ER ST A E R 132,846 132,846

— lease of parcels of land in Vietnam
—THE MR+ - 35,084
132,846 167,930

FEEXREEERAA
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(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group paid rental expenses of HK$1,013,000 (2017:
HK$950,000) to Kingmaker Footwear Company
Limited, a related company of which Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen, director and shareholder of the
Company, is also director and shareholder. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group paid rental
expenses of HK$4,000 to Mr. Chen Yi-wu, the son of
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the market conditions existing at the time when the
respective rental agreements were entered into.

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the

BRULE M BT M D a2 32
S REBRFRNE @A EE
ERERMARAALNHEEER
1,013,000/ 7T ( =& — -+ : 950,000
BIT) MARREERBRREFT MK
THARZAREERRRE RNEEZT
—+F=ZA=ZF+—HILFE AEEE
MEHFmZ T FREFEETNE
% & F4,000/8 7T °

ZEMEERN2ETVBEBHEE R
B 2 O M EE

i BERE T R B INE R LT AR RIE14A
EERLHERS -

REEFERER A SR :

Group:

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 &t  HK$'000 TH&7T
Short term employee benefits 2 Hi f& 8 & F) 19,842 13,419
Post-employment benefits 1& F 1% 4& 72 72
Equity-settled share option expense A5 45 v B IRHEF X 571 543

Total compensation paid to key management personnel
XINEAREEASRN WM ST 20,485 14,034

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FERERTENMESRRCEREBERT !
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
2018 —E-NF
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and
receivables
BEXR
L E/QE]
HK$’000 T % 7t
Accounts and bills receivable F& U B 18 & = 1% 95,886
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
STATENFIE e REMEWREZ MBEE 6,435
Due from an associate [&Ug — fE B & A 5] 5018 31,633
Cash and cash equivalents 34 & £ [RIE 4 8 H 804,292
938,246
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Financial liabilities MBaE
Financial
liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities at through profit
amortised or loss
cost held for trading Total
R A DAL E &
HEZ ZRERS
HMBaE MBaE @t
HK$'000 T#&t HK$000 T#&T HK$000 Ti& T
Accounts and bills payable JEftBRTH K& Z 4 132,959 - 132,959
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables
AR EERAMENEREZMBEE 102,902 - 102,902
Derivative financial instruments $74 & @ T & - 927 927
235,861 927 236,788
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2017 —T—tF
Financial assets MEEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Rk A E
FE W5k I8 B EE st
HK$'000 7  HK$'000 8  HK$'000 T
Available-for-sale investments A] #t (& & & - 530 530
Accounts and bills receivable F& U BE 18 & =% 141,459 = 141,459
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
STATERNFRIE e REMERIRIE 2 B G EE 4,457 - 4,457
Due from an associate [ — & B 4 A &) 7KIA 11,116 = 11,116
Cash and cash equivalents J8 & N £ R IR & TH B 775,816 - 775,816
932,848 530 933,378
Financial liabilities BEEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
BREHK AT E
ZHBEE
HK$'000 F5 T
Accounts and bills payable JEftERTE & Z 4 148,822
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other payables
STARSEERAMENEREZMBEE 101,239
250,061
EEHEEEARAT 233
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The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIFAEBEEHMIAZAVEFZERE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &

Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFEZEE:

Fair value measurement using
NEEFEMER

Quoted prices Significant
in active observable

markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
RIERMSZ  ERABEHA
wE(F-R) HE(FZR) &t
HK$'000 T3  HK$'000 F/&7L  HK$'000 FE7T

31 March 2017: _E—+&=A=+—H:

Available-for-sale investments: AJ it £ &£ & :

Listed investments £ & & 530 - 530
The Group did not have any financial assets measured at HE-_Z—)\&E=ZA=+—H8 A&E@EIE
fair value as at 31 March 2018. NATFEFEZEREE-
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Liabilities measured at fair value:
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RAFEAEZEE:
Fair value measurement using
D P EH B A

Quoted prices Significant

in active observable

markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total

RNERMSEZ EBEATEEHBA
BE(F-&) HiE(E=R) &t

HK$'000 T#&7x HK$000 Tt HK$'000 Tt

31 March 2018: —E—\E=A=+—H:

Derivative financial instruments $74 4 gl T &

= 927 927

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 March 2017.

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2017: Nil).

Major non-cash transactions

As at 31 March 2018, payables for additions of items of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments of HK$24,045,000 (2017: HK$25,867,000) and
HK$35,084,000 (2017: Nil), respectively, were not yet
settled.

HE-_ZT—+F=A=+—H FrEEIE
UAFEFEZERAEE

TR BHEERMBARRETANAFE
AEARRE-ARE_FKZEER TE
BARBHE=RE(ZFT—LF :8)-

TEFRERS

RZE—N\F=ZA=1+—H AEVE &K
B R %% 18 B B BR1824,045,000%8 T (=
T — £ F:25867,0008 ) RTEM L
E5I835,084,00087C (= —+4F : &)1
KRB o
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—F-\F=A=+—A

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and time deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivable, other receivables, accounts and bills payable
and other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also entered into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose was to manage the currency risks arising from the
Group’s operations. It is, and has been throughout the year
under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no material interest-bearing borrowings
and believes its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy on it. However,
considering the fluctuation of RMB, the Group has entered
into forward currency contracts to manage the foreign
currency risk arising from the Group’s operations. Moreover,
the majority of the Group’s operating assets are located in
Mainland China and denominated in RMB. As the Group’s
financial statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars,
there will be a translation credit/(charge) to the exchange
fluctuation reserve as a result of the RMB appreciation/
(depreciation).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities and forward currency contracts).

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2018 —F—/\#F=H=+—H

SME RLBR

AEBZEBEE BERRXZETENE
TTARBRETHE - ERETEETH
8 7 52 18 30 4 50 bk BR AR S B SR EOR - A
M ZRIAREKE AEBCILEDR
ERANNEBR AR REEBAES 2 IMNER,
oSN ARBAR D XBEEGMUR T
BAt WAARBE AR AEE 2R
BMRIABTIEREEL - MARKTE
(RE)BHELRBRERFREERE K,
(Fx) °

TRINTEMBEMEEERTE 21BN
T AEBBREMEN (BEKEERE
& REPHEBENZ ATEZE) HRE
HRARBLSEEEXRTREAEHR
B2 BURE -
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Foreign currency risk (continued) SNER R ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
fE = BR Bt Al 28 R
7 (TH) #gm, CGRd)
%  HK$'000 T8 7T
2018 —Z—\fF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
WAETHARERE 5 538
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB
HETHAREE (5) (538)
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND
i A 7T B E B E 5 (1,383)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND
fiet B T A MR B THE (5) 1,383
2017 —E—+F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
WETHARERE 5 226
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB
BT ARKTHE (5) (226)
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND
& 7T B B2 (B 5 (3,028)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND
B T sEE A (5) 3,028
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Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual
basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a
trading limit and any excess to the limit must be approved
by the general manager of the operation unit. Under the
tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment of
the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and
an amount due from an associate, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 30% (2017: 46%) and 82%
(2017: 85%) of the Group’s accounts and bills receivable
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivable are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

None of the Group’s other receivables is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets are included in other
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts and bills receivable) and the
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk. The maturity of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, was less than one
year.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Information about the statement of financial position of the ARAARBMERR P BRARERAT :
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 F# T  HK$000 Ti&7T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3Em @& E
Investments in subsidiaries R B A 7 2 & & 81,340 81,340

Total non-current assets 3E i ) & B 4458 81,340 81,340

CURRENT ASSETS & & &

Due from subsidiaries & Yt Hi B A 7 718 582,784 483,011
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ & N £ R IR & T8 B 841 736
Total current assets i 8 & £ 44 %8 583,625 483,747

CURRENT LIABILITIES i@ & f&

Accrued liabilities and other payables 5T & & & E th &~ BR 1B 1,723 1,647
Total current liabilities 7t 2 & & 4258 1,723 1,647
NET CURRENT ASSETS 7 &) & &) & 581,902 482,100
Net assets & &= /FE 663,242 563,440

EQUITY # 25

Issued share capital & %77 % A& 69,350 69,969
Reserves (note) & & (H=E) 593,892 493,471
Total equity #2858 663,242 563,440
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Note: P o -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AAREERR LT -
Share Capital Share
premium redemption Contributed option Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total
BA
R R E R B BABH BRERE RERF Ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR THT THT
At 1 April 2016 R=Z—"EMA—H 113,001 4,966 66,982 7,769 235,770 428,488
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income
for the year
FRRNERAFEZARERE - - - - 179,292 179,292
Issue of shares %17 {7 11,993 - - (1,717) - 10,276
Shares repurchased & [0 % (5,985) 341 = = (341) (5,935)
Final 2016 dividend declared and paid
BERREMN _Z—R~FRERE - - - - (36,072) (36,072)
Special 2016 dividend declared and paid
BERERENZZ—REHIKRE - - - - (27,747 (27,747)
Interim 2017 dividend paid Bk = F—tFH RS - - - - (29,375) (29,375)
Special 2017 dividend paid Bk = E -t FHFIR & = = = = (26,578) (26,578)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
BRNEREE RN L 258 - - - 1,122 = 1,122
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017
RZZE—+t&=A=+—BRZZ—t&MA—H 119,059 5,307 66,982 7,174 294,949 493,471
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income
for the year
FRNRNRAFEZENSEE = - - - 289,233 289,233
Issue of shares #1717 3,462 - - (711) - 2,751
Shares repurchased & @ i {3 (17,739) 827 - - (827) (17,739)
Final 2017 dividend declared and paid
BEERERENZZ—tEREKRE - - - - (38,434) (38,434)
Special 2017 dividend declared and paid
BERREN ZE—LFHIRS = - - - (31,446) (31,446)
Interim 2018 dividend paid B &k =Z— N ER LR S - - - - (26,562) (26,562)
Special 2018 dividend paid B &1 = — N FH AR E = - - - (78,287) (78,287)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
RAEREE ARG X2 KA - - - 905 - 905
At 31 March 2018 R=ZE—N\F=F=+—H 104,782 6,134 66,982 7,368 408,626 593,892

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in
September 1994, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 ' ARFEEHK
March 2018 are as follows: BAGZFFIBEMT
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to  Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
TR EMRE ERITREG, PN
H#B REHE HfEE ERESL FEER
Directly held EiEi8E
MJ Haig Industries Limited * British Virgin Ordinary 100  Sourcing of raw
ZERBROARA R Islands/Taiwan US$10,000 materials for
RBHEBREHE/ Lk footwear
=) 10,000 7T REERERRM
Ready Luck Limited * British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 Investment holding
HERARRES US$5,000 REER
TR
5,000 7t
Indirectly held B 5
Discovery Star Development Hong Kong Ordinary 100  Property holding
Limited EE HK$2 RAEME
WMEERERAR TRk
28T
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Vietnam US$15,000,000 100 Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. = 15,000,000 7T manufacturing
B2 828 (#r) BRAT SEEREM
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Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal

Name and operations registered capital the Company activities

MR R BRITRG, NN
=L R B EMER BERESE FEEE
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MERE (£)

Maystar Footwear PRC/ US$43,000,000 100 Footwear
Company Limited * Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing and
EXERERRAT F B, B A 43,000,000 7T property holding

(Mi5E(a)) WEEREMR
REME
Miri International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Investment holding
BREBREZESHRNHER AT B HK$2 and provision of
Lk administrative
24T services
REBERR
R 1T R AR 7

Profit Success Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100  Investment holding

FMEXKRERRRAA BE HK$1,000 REER
EEk
1,000 7T

King Senses Hong Kong Ordinary 100  Investment holding
Enterprises Limited o HK$1 REZER
BECEERAR gl

18T

Kingstar (Jiangxi) PRC/ US$11,920,000 100  Property holding
Footwear Limited * Mainland China (Note (a)) BKEME
R (IR EXARAR" R E B A 11,920,000 7T

(Pt E(a))
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Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MR R BRITRG, NN
=L RE B EMER BERESE FEEE
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MERE (£)
Kingmaker (Cambodia) Kingdom of Ordinary 100 Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. Cambodia US$10,000,000 manufacturing
RFFEER gl REEREM
10,000,000% 7T
Opal Star International British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited * EEERRES Us$1 REER
EERRERER AR TRk
E
LEEEBEERAR PRC/ US$9,000,000 100  Property holding
Mainland China (Note (a)) RAEME
R B A 9,000,000% &
(BI3E())
King Eternal Investments British Virgin Islands Ordinary 51 Investment holding
Limited * HERRRES US$100 REER
gl
1003 T
King Riches Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 Trading of footwear
=B8ARLNA Mainland China Us$1 products
EEERRES/ Rl EEHEEM
B A 3 1
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Place of
incorporation/

Percentage
of equity

registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MRS B R R BRITRG, NN
=L R B &R BERESE FEEE
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MERE (£)
Sanford Resources Macau Macau Ordinary 100 Trading of footwear
Commercial Offshore Limited iy MOP100,000 products
gl EEHBEM
100,000/2F 7T
Yingfeng Industrial (Hongkong) Hong Kong Ordinary 51 Investment holding
Co., Limited BB US$20,409 REZEK
DEEX (FA)BRRAT TRk
20,409% 7T

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
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Note:

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the law of the PRC.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Certain comparative amounts have been re-presented to
conform with the current year’s presentation. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, this presentation would
better reflect the financial position of the Group.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2018.
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Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group

REBEBZREMFEFE

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use  Term of lease
B4
BEEERE
Location 1 2 rEEzER (EHK) B AT HE
Whole of Block A, s 100% 39,025 Industrial Medium
Levels 1, 3-7 Block B and BEE T% 8
whole of Block C KM
situated at AL &
No.1 Cuizhu Street, BRTI%R
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, BIREAR
Qianshan District, RIR2R 21, 3-712
Zhuhai City, RARER
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
Whole of composite building, H 100% 9,225.72 Industrial Medium
Levels 1-7 situated at BRE T% F 8
No. 1 Cuizhu Street, Em
Chi Zhu Industrial Zone, AL &
Qianshan District, BHRT%R
Zhuhai City, RIREA
Guangdong Province, BEEERI-TE
The PRC
Whole of Blocks 1-7 s 100% 22,874 Industrial Medium
Industrial Park of Yifeng PNE I% F 8
County, EEM
Yifeng County, HEE
Yichun Shi, FYT£R
Jiangxi Province, 1- TR
The PRC
Unit Nos. 1401, 1414, 1415 H 100% 330.18 Commercial Medium
and 1416 on Level 14, BRE GES H
Metro Plaza, BN
Nos. 183-187 Tianhe XA R
North Road, K4k #183-187%%
Tianhe District, ABEES1418
Guangzhou, 1401 ~ 1414 - 1415
Guangdong Province, K1416ZF
The PRC
Whole of Level 20, s 100% 851.16 Commercial Medium
Asia Mansion, Lam [ HEf
Nos. 663-669 Jiu Jiang Road, HEHR

Huangpu District,
Shanghai,
The PRC

1T %663-6695%
THAE2082E
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